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ATHENS STATE UNIVERSITY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
BOARD MEETING
MAY 20, 2022

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|]
The Athens State University Board of Trustees (also referred herein as the Board) held a meeting at 2:30 p.m.
on Friday, May 20, 2022 in the Sandridge Student Center Ballroom to consider University matters.

PRESIDING: MR. MACKE MAULDIN
The Board of Trustees meeting was called to order at 2:37 p.m. by Mr. Macke Mauldin.

PUBLIC COMMENT

No one officially registered for public comment.

ROLL CALL
On roll call, the following Board members were present and constituted a quorum to conduct business:

Mr. Jim America

Mr. Ronnie Chronister

Ms. Cathy Dickens

Mr. Bill Dunnavant

Mr. Macke Mauldin

Senator Arthur Orr

Mr. Goodrich ‘Dus’ Rogers
Dr. Sandra Sims-deGraffenried

Also present were Dr. Philip Way, President of Athens State University and Mr. Shane Black, University Legal
Counsel, and Ms. Jackie Gooch, Secretary to the Board. Governor Kay Ivey, Chancellor Jimmy Baker, and
Mrs. Missy Ming Smith were absent.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

On a motion made by Senator Orr and seconded by Dr. Sims-deGraffenried, the Board approved the agenda by
affirmative votes (8-0) of members answering present.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

On a motion made by Senator Orr and seconded by Mr. Chronister, the Board approved the minutes of the
January 21, 2022 meeting by affirmative votes (8-0) of members answering present.

OLD BUSINESS, PENDING MOTIONS AND RESOLUTION
None.
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NEW BUSINESS, PENDING MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS

2020-2021 Financial Audit Acceptance

(Attachment A)

On a motion made by Mr. Dunnavant and seconded by Dr. Sims-deGraffenried, the Board accepted the
2020-2021 Financial Audit as presented by Mark Abernathy of the accounting firm of Mauldin and Jenkins, LLC.
This motion was approved by the following roll-call vote:

Jim America — YES

Ronnie Chronister — YES
Cathy Dickens — YES

Bill Dunnavant — YES

Macke Mauldin — YES
Senator Arthur Orr — YES
Dus Rogers — YES

Dr. Sims-deGraffenried - YES

Horizon 2030 Report Card 2020-2021 Acceptance

(Attachment B)
On a motion made by Dr. Sims-deGraffenried and seconded by Mr. Chronister, the Board accepted the
2020-2021 Horizon 2030 Report Card as presented. This motion was approved by the following roll-call vote:

Jim America — YES

Ronnie Chronister — YES
Cathy Dickens — YES

Bill Dunnavant — YES

Macke Mauldin — YES
Senator Arthur Orr — YES
Dus Rogers — YES

Dr. Sims-deGraffenried - YES

Presidential 360° Evaluation Process

(Attachment C)

On a motion made by Mr. Dunnavant and seconded by Dr. Sims-deGraffenried, the Board approved contracting
with AASCU Consulting for the purpose of conducting an evaluation of the President of the University. This
motion was approved by the following roll-call vote.

Jim America— YES
Ronnie Chronister — YES
Cathy Dickens — YES

Bill Dunnavant — YES
Macke Mauldin — YES
Senator Arthur Orr — YES
Dus Rogers — YES
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Dr. Sims-deGraffenried - YES

Depositories for University Funds

(Attachment D)

On a motion made by Senator Orr and seconded by Dr. Sims-deGraffenried, the Board approved President
Way’s recommendation for the following institutions as the University’s banking and investing partners:
Pinnacle Financial Partners, PNC Bank, UBS Financial Services and Edward Jones. This motion was approved
by the following roll-call vote:

Jim America — YES

Ronnie Chronister — YES
Cathy Dickens — YES

Bill Dunnavant — YES

Macke Mauldin — Abstain
Senator Arthur Orr — YES
Dus Rogers — YES

Dr. Sims-deGraffenried - YES

Capital Improvement: New Maintenance Building

(Attachment E)

On a motion made by Dr. Sims-deGraffenried and seconded by Ms. Dickens, the Board approved expending
funds for a new Maintenance Facility on the Athens State University Campus. Mr. Dunnavant made a motion to
table this item, no second was given, motion to table not approved. This motion to expend the funds was
approved by the following roll-call vote:

Jim America— YES

Ronnie Chronister — YES
Cathy Dickens — YES

Bill Dunnavant — NO

Macke Mauldin — YES
Senator Arthur Orr — YES
Dus Rogers — YES

Dr. Sims-deGraffenried - YES

New Academic Program: UG Certificate in Bioinformatics

(Attachment F)
On a motion made by Senator Orr and seconded by Mr. America, the Board approved the UG Certificate in
Bioinformatics. This motion was approved by the following roll-call vote:

Jim America— YES
Ronnie Chronister — YES
Cathy Dickens — YES

Bill Dunnavant — YES
Macke Mauldin — YES
Senator Arthur Orr — YES
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Dus Rogers — YES
Dr. Sims-deGraffenried - YES

New Academic Program: GR Certificate in Accountancy

(Attachment G)
On a motion made by Senator Orr and seconded by Mr. America, the Board approved the GR Certificate in
Accountancy. This motion was approved by the following roll-call vote:

Jim America — YES

Ronnie Chronister — YES
Cathy Dickens — YES

Bill Dunnavant — YES

Macke Mauldin — YES
Senator Arthur Orr — YES

Dus Rogers — YES

Dr. Sims-deGraffenried — YES

New Academic Program: Master of Science in Acquisition and Contract Management

(Attachment H)
On a motion made by Mr. Rogers and seconded by Senator Orr, the Board approved the Master of Science in
Acquisition and Contract Management. This motion was approved by the following roll-call vote:

Jim America — YES

Ronnie Chronister — YES
Cathy Dickens — YES

Bill Dunnavant — YES

Macke Mauldin — YES
Senator Arthur Orr — YES
Dus Rogers — YES

Dr. Sims-deGraffenried - YES

AY 2022-2023 Tuition/Fee Schedule

(Attachment 1)

On a motion made by Mr. Chronister and seconded by Dr. Sims-deGraffenried, the Board approved the

AY 2022-2023 Tuition/Fee Schedule that included a 7% increase in undergraduate and graduate tuition rates.
The 7% increase is based on the December 2021 12-month CPI. This motion was approved by the following
roll-call vote:

Jim America— YES
Ronnie Chronister — YES
Cathy Dickens — YES

Bill Dunnavant — NO
Macke Mauldin — YES
Senator Arthur Orr — YES
Dus Rogers — YES
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Dr. Sims-deGraffenried - YES

OTHER BUSINESS

Quarterly Financial Update
The Board received the quarterly financial update.

Alabama Commission on Education (ACHE) Update
The Board received a handout on actions taken by the Commission.

Board Evaluation Survey
Opening May 31 until June 13, 2022

Board of Trustees Retreat - August/September
More details to following regarding Board Retreat.

President’s Report/Update

Dr. Way provided the following updates:

1.

Thanked Board members Jim America and Bill Dunnavant for bringing greetings at the Spring 2022
Commencement ceremonies.

Dr. Way announced that the University will be hosting the Regional Workforce Conference on
December 7, 2022.

Dr. Way announced that the University will be hosting the 2023 Achieve Conference on
March 1-2, 2023.

Dr. Way announced that the University’s outlook is very positive with increased state appropriations and
improvement in enrollments. Summer enrollment for new students is more than in the last three years.
New programs continue to grow.

Dr. Way announced that the University is increasing alumni efforts across the state. Dr. Way
participated in an alumni event recently in Mobile to connect with alums in that area. At the conclusion
of the event, the University received a first-time contribution from one of the alums in attendance.
Alumni events are being planned for the Huntsville and Decatur areas.

Board Committee Updates and Report Acceptance

Finance and Facilities Committee - Mr. Mauldin
Mr. Mauldin provided the Finance and Facilities update.
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Enrollment and Student Affairs Committee - Mr. Rogers
Mr. Rogers provided the Enrollment and Student Affairs update.

Academic Affairs Committee - Mr. America
Mr. Chronister provided the Academic Affairs update.

Development Committee - Ms. Dickens

Ms. Dickens provided the Development Committee update to include 1) Capital Campaign is currently at $19.6
million of the $20,000,000 goal with the anticipation of an additional upcoming $1.1 million estate gift. On a
motion made by Senator Orr and seconded by Ms. Dickens, the Board accepted the Board Committee reports.
This motion was approved by the following roll-call vote:

Jim America— YES

Ronnie Chronister — YES
Cathy Dickens — YES

Bill Dunnavant — YES

Macke Mauldin — YES
Senator Arthur Orr — YES
Dus Rogers — YES

Dr. Sims-deGraffenried - YES

ADJOURNMENT
On a motion made by Senator Orr and seconded by Mr. America, Mr. Mauldin adjourned the Athens State
University Board of Trustees meeting at 3:32 pm.
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ATHENS STATE UNIVERSITY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

RECOMMENDATION FOR ACTION

DATE OF BOARD MEETING: May 20,2022
ACTION ITEM TITLE: 2020-2021 Financial Audit Acceptance
RECOMMENDATION:

Itisrecommended that the Athens State Board of Trustees accept the 2020-2021
Financial Audit as presented by the accounting firm of Mauldin and Jenkins, LLC.

FISCAL CONSIDERATION: None.
RATIONALE: The Board of Trustees receives a report and a copy of the audit annually.

, \7&\7/
Macke Mauldin, Chair pro tempore Da
Missy Ming Smith, Vice Chair pro tempore Date
mb K. wom S|
Philip Way, Prgmden/f Athens State University Date

%Uuo Mooch 05]2.0[2023-

Jackie Gooch, Secretary to the Board of Trustees Date
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& JENKINS

CPAs & ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Trustees
Athens State University

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Athens State University (*ASU” or
“the University™), a component unit of the State of Alabama, and its discretely presented
component unit as of and for the year ended September 30, 2021, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise ASU’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. The financial statements of the discretely
presented component unit, Athens State University Foundation, Inc. (*ASUF” or “the
Foundation™), were not audited in accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

213 SOUTH HOUSTON STREET » ATHENS, AL 3561 1 » 256232-2260 « 855.891-0070 « FAX 256-232-1881 *» www.mjcpa.com
Members of The American Instuute of Certified Public Accauntunis
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of ASU and its discretely presented component unit as of September 30,
2021, and the changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 15, the schedule of Athens State
University’s proportionate share of the net pension liability and OPEB liability on pages 57 and
59, respectively, and the schedule of Athens State University’s pension and OPEB contributions
on pages 58 and 60, respectively, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the basic financial statements as
a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes
of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule
of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.

The Listing of University Officials on page 62 has not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on it.

2
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
March 18, 2022 on our consideration of Athens State University’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of ASU’s internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering Athens State University’s internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

Nt  Goofins, KLE.

Athens, Alabama
March 18, 2022
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Athens State University
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
September 30, 2021

Introduction

The objective of Management's Discussion and Analysis is to help the readers of Athens State
University’s financial statements to better understand the financial condition and activities that
have occurred during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021. This document has been prepared
by management and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and the notes to
the financial statements.

Athens State University’s financial report consists of the following statements:
o The Statement of Net Position
¢ The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
o The Statement of Cash Flows

These statements are intended to present the financial position, operating activities and cash flows
of the University. The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is
needed to fully understand the financial statements.

Athens State University baccalaurcate and
master’s degree granting upper-division. non-
residential, co-educational, is an open-
admissions  institution  located in  the
northernmost part of the state in the City of
Athens, Alabama. It can be classificd as both
the oldest and youngest institution of higher
education in Alabama and is the only institution
of its kind in the State of Alabama. The
institution was founded in 1822. by local
citizens who purchased five acres of land,

crected a building, and began mhcnlecma!c
Academy.  Ownership of the school was
transferred in 1842 to the Tennessee Conference
of the Methodist Church. With the birth of the
North Alabama Conference of the Methodist
Church in 1870, the institution came under the
jurisdiction of that body. The University
remained a female institution until it became co-
cducational in 1931, with a name change to
Athens College.

Alabama Conference of the United Methodist Church that the institution seek alfiliation with the
Statc of Alabama. The Conference, at its annual meeting in Junc 1974, gave the Board of Trustecs
this permission and authorized the potential transfer of the institution to the State of Alabama.
Following a lengthy period of negotiations, the institution was accepted by the Alabama State
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Board of Education on November 24, 1975 and charged to serve the graduates of state junior.
community, and technical colleges/institutes.

It is the only upper division school in the state. The Alabama Legislature and the State Board of
Education worked together to appropriate funds for continued operation with the goal of serving
the graduates of the states’ many two-year colleges. The University underwent another name
change to Athens State University in 1998.

Athens State University is considered the youngest institution because it became an autonomous
university in 2012. This occurred when, by act of the Alabama Legislature, Athens State University
withdrew from governance under the Alabama State Board of Education and the Department of
Postsecondary Education and from membership in the statewide community college system. On
October 1, 2012, the University officially became an autonomous public institution governed by a
Board of Trustees.

Enrollment is approximately 3,000 students and ninety-six (96)
percent of our students are Alabama residents, located in 34
counties or eighty (80) percent of the 67 counties in the state.
Sixty-eight (68) percent of students are female, average age of
30 years, gainfully employed, and most with children at home.
Fifty-cight (38) percent of students attend school on a part-time
basis, and ninety (90) percent are employed cither full-time
(63%) or part-time (27%). The racial composition of the student
body is seventy-five (73) percent White and twenty-two (22)
percent minority (3% not reported). Sixty-one (61) percent of
students receive some form of financial assistance that may
include federal, state, and/or institutional funding sources

AN B -,

(Source: Fall 2020 FFact Book).

The Athens State University mission statement stresses the institution’s emphasis on teaching,.
service, rescarch and other creative activities to empower its students to make valuable
contributions in their professional, civic, educational, and economic endeavors. The institution
strives 1o provide appropriate learning resources and a variety of course formats and options that
support quality teaching, learning, and the advancement of knowledge and actively promotes
diversity and lifelong learning. Through affiliations with a variety of organizations, Athens State
University provides resources that support continuing education for students and the community
at large. The institution also sponsors and supports programs that stimulate cultural and intellectual
enrichment in the community. As of Fall 2020, the University employed 230 full-time employees
including 84 faculty members and 132 part-time employees which includes 87 part-time faculty.

The University offers 34 undergraduate degree programs and 3 graduate degree programs for its
students to choose from and continues to explore the latest technology in the delivery of these
majors. In addition, the University offers 57 minors and 17 certificates. To better meet the needs
of our students, the University provides 12 undergraduate and 3 graduate programs completely
online through a distance learning format. A bricf paragraph about each of the University’s three
Colleges and the University Centers follows.

Ln
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College of Education — The College of Education is the state leader in producing high quality
teacher candidates. The College of Education faculty has established programs based on the
conceptual framework’s theme “Reflective Practitioners.” The conceptual framework has four
goals which describe the tcacher candidates who complete the program at Athens State
University. These four program goals are: Student Centered Learning, Disciplinary Knowledge,
Professional and Pedagogical Knowledge, and Socially Responsible Citizens. Specifically,
Athens State teacher candidates graduate with a strong foundation in disciplinary, professional,
and pedagogical knowledge and the ability to create student centered leaming opportunities and
practice socially responsible citizenship. Graduates are prepared for the classroom and are
attractive to school systems in North Alabama and across the state. Courses are offered in
traditional, blended, and online formats to meet the nceds of students. The College of Education
is accredited by NCATE, the National Council for Accreditation of Teacher Education. The U.S.
Department of Education and the Council for Higher Education Accreditation recognize NCATE
as an accrediting body for schools, colleges and departments of education. NCATE is currently
collaborating with the Tcacher Education Accreditation Council (TEAC) to form a new national
accrediting body called the Council for Accreditation of Educator Programs (CAEP).

College of Arts and Sciences — The College of Arts and Sciences curricula are designed to prepare
students for entry into the job market, or for continuing education in graduate or professional
school. Through its course offerings, the college seeks to engage the intelligence, excite the
imagination, and improve the scholarship of its students. Through engaged learning experiences
the College of Arts and Sciences seeks to assist its students to develop competencies in writien
and oral communications; appreciation of our cultural heritage and understanding of our world; a
knowledge base conducive to sclf-growth and enriched life experiences; and, fundamental
knowledge, research skills and computer litcracy essential to lifelong learning. The College of
Arts and Sciences launched its first graduate degree program, a Master of Arts in Religious Studies,
in the Fall 2016.

College of Business — The mission of the College of Business at Athens State University is to offer
programs of study to preparc students for positions in business, finance, and government; to
cnhance the professional development of those already employed, and to provide an academic
framework for graduate study lcading to professional positions. The purpose of the College of
Business is to provide quality education for all students, teaching them to think critically, to use
technology cfTicicntly, to be effective leaders, decision makers, and communicators, to maintain
ethical standards, and to understand the global ecconomy. The College of Business offers seven
undergraduate degrec programs and one graduate degree program entirely online in addition to the
traditional offerings. The onlinc format cnables the University to reach students across the state,
the nation, and intecrnationally. Additionally, the College of Business is accredited by the
Association of Collegiate Business Schools and Programs (ACBSP), onc of the leading specialized
accreditation associations for business education.
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University Centers — Athens State University has 6 off-campus instructional sites located in
various areas of North Alabama with the goal of cxpanding the opportunities for traditional and
non-traditional students to pursue degrees or certifications at locations where education might
otherwise be limited. Each Center is staffed with a Center Manager to provide student support
services in admissions, registration, academic advising, financial aid, and more. The University
has Centers located on the campus of Wallace State Community College-Hanceville, Northeast
Alabama Community College. and Redstone Arsenal. These Centers serve as recruiting and
advising facilities as well as offer onsite and distance learning classes. The University also has
Centers on the campuses of Snead State Community College and Northwest Shoals Community
College. These Centers also serve as recruiting and advising facilities and offer only distance
learning classes.

Through a collaborative partnership between
Athens  State  University,  Calhoun
Community College, the City of Decatur,
and Morgan County, the Alabama Center for
the Arts opened in January 2013 in Decatur,
Alabama. This location serves as a venue for
college art  instruction, community
education, and cultural events.

Financial Highlights

Athens State University had another
successful year financially. For the fifteenth-consecutive year, the University increased its overall
financial position. The University’s total asscts and deferred outflows at the conclusion of the
fiscal year ended September 30, 202 [ were $92.73 million and liabilities and deferred inflows were
$70.98 million. This resulted in a significant increasc ($4.84 million) in the University’s net
position which ended the year at $21.75 million.

Financial Statements
As stated in the previous paragraphs, the University’s annual financial reports include the
following three statements:

e The Statement of Net Position,

e The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position,

e The Statement of Cash Flows

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) requirements and guidelines. These financial statements are followed by Notes to
the Financial Statements, which are intended to supplement the financial statements and to provide
more detailed information thereto.
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The University’s Financial Position

The Statement of Net Position presents the financial position of the University at the end of the
fiscal year. It displays all of the University's assets. deferred outflows. liabilities, and deferred
inflows. The difference between the assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows
represents the net position of the University. Net position is the measure of net worth, the current
financial position of the University at September 30, 2021. The below chart reflects assets and
liabilities as compared to last fiscal year adjusted to account forthe change in accounting principle.
The chart reflects an increase in net position of $4.84 million.

Financial Position

Current Assets Non-Current Current Uabilities Non-Current Net Assets
Assets Liabilities

Net position is divided into three major categories. (a) The first category, invested in capital
assets. net of debt. provides the University’s equity in property. plant and equipment owned by
Athens State University. (b) The next category is restricted net position, which is divided into two
categories, nonexpendable and expendable. The nonexpendable restricted resources are only
available for investment purposes. Expendable restricted net position is available for expenditure
by the University but must be spent for purposes as determined by donors and/or external entities
that have placed time or purpose restrictions on the use of the assets. The University did not have
any nonexpendable net position at September 30, 2021. (c) The final category is unrestricted net
position. Unrestricted net position is available to the University for any appropriate purpose.
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Summary: Statement of Net Position

Total Liabilities, Deferrved Inflows
of Resources, Net Position

$92,526.167

2021 2020

dssets:

|Current Assets $27,IT0758 S 23,399,524

Capital Assets, Net 42,625,402 43,238,501

|Other Assets $.975.893 $.715.517
Total Assets 78.774.049 78.353.562

Deferred Outflows of Resources 13,952,118 6,955,566

Total Assets and Deferred

Outflows of Resources $92,726,167 $ $2.289.228

Liabilities:

Current Liabilities $ 8,523,790 § 9,371,895

Non-Cusrent Liabilities 53,524,497 45,143,77
Total Liabilities 62,048,287 54,515,665

Deferred Inflows of Resources $927.877 10,866.24

Net Position:

Invested in Capital, Net

of Debt 33,450,402 32,484,392

Restricted - Expendable 994,617 586,121

Restricted - Endowments 200,000 100,000

Unsestricted (12.875.016) (16,262.931)
Total Net Position 21,750,003 16,907,522

The University’s Results of Operations

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents the revenues received
by the University, both operating and non-operating, and the expenses paid by the University, both
operating and non-operating, and any other revenues, expenses, gains or losses reccived, or spent
by the University. The changes in total net position as presented on the Statement of Net Position
are based on the aclivity presented in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Position.

The Operating revenues are those revenues received from students (tuition and fees) and various
outside tuition assistance programs. Operating cxpenses arc those expenses incurred while
carrying out the service programs offered by the University. Non-operating revenucs are revenues
received for which services are not provided (example, Athens State University’s State
Appropriation).
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Summary: Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

2021 2020 Change
Operatng Revenues $24,615,814 $ 20,860,6S1 $ 3,755,133
Operating Expenses 42,410,272 38,411,730 3,998,542
Operating Loss (17,794,458) (17,551,049) (243,409)
Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses 22,636,969 22.270,764 366,205
Increase in Net Position 4,842,511 4,719,715 122,796
Net Position - Beginning of Year 16,907,322 12,187,807 4,719,713
Net Position - End of Year $21,750,033 S 16907,522 S 4,842,511

The Statement of Revenues, Expenscs, and Changes in Net Position reflects operating revenues of
$24,615,814, which is an increase of $3,755,133 from the prior ycar. This is a result of an increase
from Federal Grants and Contracts of $4,278,714. The operating cxpenses increased by 10.4% due
to an increase in operational budgets for the Education Stabilization Fund rclated to the ongoing
COVI{D-19 pandemic and salary and employee benefit budgets.

The following chart provides a picture of what the University's Unrestricted and Total Net Position
would be before the Pension Liability and Other Postemployment Benefits Liability are applied to
the Financial Statements.

2021 2020

Unrestricted Net Position per Audted Financial Statements $(12,875,016) S (16,262,991)
[Cumulative Effects of the:
Pension Liability 25,667,570 24,192,260
Other Postemplovment Benefits Liability 14,275,604 14,964,901
Unrestricted Net Position, net of Pesnion and OPEB Liabilities 27.068.158 22,804,170
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 33,430,401 32,484,392
Restricted:

Expendable 994,617 586,121

Capital Projects - -

Endowments 200,000 100,000
Total Net Position, net of Pension and OPEB Liabilities S 61,693,176 S 36,064,683
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The chart below displays the operating revenues by type and their relationship to one another as
discussed in the previous paragraph. The largest source of funds for fiscal year 2021 is Student
Tuition and Fees. State and Local Grants and Contracts make up the next largest source of funds.
Federal Grants and Contracts consist of Federal Financial Assistance to students in the form of
Pell Grants, FSEOG, SMART Grants, TEACH Grants, and Federal Work Study Funds.

The largest source of non-operating revenues is State Appropriations. Athens State University
annually receives a State Appropriation as a separate line item in the state of Alabama Education
Trust Fund budget. The 2021 and 2020 fiscal year State Appropriation allocated for the Operations
and Maintenance and Program Support of the University totaled S15.055,494 and $14.655,494 for

cach year respectively.

Operating Revenues

$18,000,000
$16,000,000
$14,000,000
512,000,000

$10,000,000 1~

56,0000 1
$4,000,000

$2,000,000

200

2020
mSludent Tuion and Fees §15,232,489 ‘ 516107153
# Federal Grants and Contracts $5,900,844 51,631,130
® State andLocal Grants and Conteacts 63,232,828 SJ,ébﬁ,ﬁ? R
® Ausillary Enterprises ' 260,653 75222,265
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Operating Expenses

The operating expenses by function are displayed in the following exhibit:

Operating Expenses

18,000,000 P

16,000,000

14,000,000

12,000,000

10,000,000

8,000,000

6,000,000

4,000,000

2,000,000

B LIJ;~

e

Instruction Academic Student  Institutional o&m Student Aid Other
Support Services Support #2021 w2020

The chart above allows the reader to visualize each functional expenditure category and how
each functional category of expenditures compares to the other.

Operating Expenses by Natural Classification

2021 2020 Change % Change

Salaries $ 20,595,609 S 20,351,732 S 243,857 1.20%
Benefits 7,402,091 6,096,831 1,305,260 21.41%
Supplies and Others 7,663,020 6,260,347 1,404,473 22.43%
Utiles 590,124 622,766 (32,642) -3.24%
Financial Aid 4,876,768 3,508,661 1,068,107 28.04%
Dcprcciaﬁon 1,250,660 1,271,173 9,487 0.75%
S 42,410,272 S 35,411,730 S 3,998,542 10.41%
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The University’s Cash Flows

The Statement of Cash Flows is the final statement presented by Athens State University. [t
presents detailed information about the cash activity of the institution during the year.

The statement is divided into five parts. The first part deals with operating cash flows and shows
the net cash used for the operating activitics of the University. The sccond section reflects cash
flows from non-capital financing activitics. This section reflects the cash received and spent for
non-operating, non-investing, and non-capital financing purposes. The third section deals with
cash flows from capital and related financing activities. This section deals with the cash used for
the acquisition and construction of capital assets and related items. The fourth section reflects the
cash flows from investing activities and shows the purchases, proceeds, and interest received from
investing activities. The fifth section reconciles the net cash used to the operating income or loss
reflected on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position.

Cash Flows for the Years Ended September 30:

2021 2020

Cash provided (used) by:

Operating activities S (17,364,639) $ (16,294,945)

Non-capital financing activities 23,079,744 22,607,112

Investing actvities 238,896 282,519

Capital and related fmancing actnities (2.591,423) (2,425,630)
Net Change in Cash 3,062,558 4,169,036
Cash - Beginning of Year ‘ 20,080,898 15911,842
Cash - End of Year S 23143456 S 20,080,598

The above cash flow comparison reflects an increase in cash of $3,062,558 as compared to ending
cash the previous year.

Looking Forward

Act. No. 2012-497 removed Athens State University from the jurisdiction, supervision, and control
of the State Board of Education and Department of Postsecondary Education cffective October 1,
2012. This legislation cnabled the creation of the Board of Trustees of Athens State University
which is to provide governance of the university. Athens State University, as the only upper
division institution in the State of Alabama, strives to serve the graduates of the state’s community
college system. The University has been successful in reaching out to the graduates of the
Alabama Community College System. By offering several on-linc degrec programs, the
University has been able to offer courses to students in the underserved areas of the state. In doing
so, Athens State University is taking a lcad role in enhancing the education opportunitics of our
citizens and improving the overall education level in the State of Alabama.
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Athens State, under the supervision of its Board of Trustces, continues to be the most affordable
higher education option in the State of Alabama and in the Southeast. The University will continue
to monitor enrollment and reach out to students in underserviced areas of the state, while
continuing to provide the quality of cducation our students have become accustomed. The
University is currently expanding our Liberal Arts program in Decatur with a joint agreement with
Calhoun Community College. The University continucs to develop new majors and programs in
response to demand in the job market.

The University's overall enrollment remains fairly stable and we continue to look for ways to
increase enrollment and better serve our student population.

Student Fall Faroltment Data « 1lead Count

42020 % 2020 % 9 % 2018 % W7 % 2006 % 2018 % 2004 % 2003 %
Undesgaduate 2,559 92% 2,688 94% 2,778 4% 2,886 95% 2969 95% 3,027 99% 042 100% 3,129 100% 3,075 100%
(raduaic 235 8% 179. 6% 167 6% 189 5% 7 % 38 1% « 0% - 0% . %
Totsl 2,794 2.867 2,948 3,048 3116 3.06S 3042 3.129 3178
Flkuhb\m
Geaduate 233 8% 177 6% 166 6% 156 5% 145 S% 37 1% - 0% - 0% - 0%
1Senior 1.575 56% 1,660 S$8% 1,631 36% 1,584  S52% 1681 S4% 1,782 S8% 1,776 SK% 1871 60% 1,909 0%
Junior 936 34% 962 34% 1,057 35% 1,150  33% 1.020 36% 1,006 3G% 0,028 37% 1,020 36% 1,090 34%
Other 50 2% 68 2% 101 3% 155 $% 370 5% 140 S$% 138 5% 138 4% 176 6%
Female 1.931 69% 1,970 69% 2011 68% 2083 68% 2.07) 66% 2,009 66% 1979 65% 2046 65% 2066 G5%
Mate 863 31% 8397 31% 934 32% 962  32% 1045 33% 1,056 34% 1,065 359% 1,083 35% 1,169 35%
In-Satc 2,644 95% 2,725 95% 2816 96% 2900  95% 2973 95% 2,923 95% 2902 93% 299) 96% 3046 96%)
Ou-ol-Sate 150 5% 142 5% 120 4% 145 5% 143 3% 142 S% 140 5% 138 4% 129 4%

Student Fall Fnrollment Data - Credit 1lour Production

Undergracste 24,894 94% 26,560 96% 26,727 96% 27,287 97% 27,624 97% 28,314 99% 28,582 1003 29,757 100% 30,076 100%)
(eadnste 1467 6% 1,194 4% 1071 4% 969 3% 924 3% 233 1%

Total 26,361 21,754 27,798 ‘28,286 24,518 28,347 28,582 29,757 30.076
*Preliminasy Enrolimem Data
Source: University Fact Book

Athens Forever Capital Campaign and Bicentennial Celebration

The impact of the support provided by our alumni, faculty and staff. and friends can be seen and
felt daily on the Athens State University campus. Our [acilities, curriculum, mission, and goals are
all dependent on the generosity of all those touched by what has happened, what is happening, or
what will happen here.

Our students begin their success stories at Athens State due to our ability to provide an outstanding
education by an exceptional faculty at an affordable price. The benevolence of the supporters of
the Athens State University Foundation provides scholarships and infrastructure to give each
student a successful start.

14
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As we approach our bicentennial, we are reminded of our rich
history and the many inspiring people who have passed through
our historic columns. This occasion represents a significant
milestone; despite epidemics, wars, and economic downturns,
the institution has not only endured but has grown into a highly
respected university. The foundation that was laid in 1822
continues (o support an institution that has grown strong both in
students and facilities.

On August 4, 2017, the silent phase of the $20 million Athens
FForever capital campaign was launched. On February 29, 2020
we announced the public phase of the campaign having raised over $19.02 million of the goal as
of September 30, 2021. The campaign will end in 2022 to coincide with the Bicentennial
Celebration. We believe this will provide a foundation for the continuance of the rich history and
academic excellence that Athens State University personifies.

Contacting the University’s Financial Management

This Financial Report is designed to provide citizens. taxpayers, investors, and creditors with a
general overview of the University’s finances and to show the University’s accountability for the
funding it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial
information, contact Jonathan Craft, CPA, Assistant Vice President for Financial Affairs, by mail
at Athens State University, 300 North Beaty Street, Athens, Alabama 35611, by email at
jonathan craft@athens.edu or by calling (256) 216-3310.
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ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Short-Term Investments
Accounts Receivable, Net of Allowance for
Doubtful Accounts of $568,650
Inventories
Deposit with Bond Trustee
Prepaid Expenses and Unearned Scholarships

Total Current Assets

Non-Current Asscts

Long-Term Investments

Capital Assets:
Land
Improvements Other Than Buildings
Buildings
Equipment and Furniture
Library Holdings
Construction in Progress
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation

Total Non-Current Assets
Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to Debt
Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to Pensions and OPEB

Total Deferred Qutflows of Resources

$ 23,143.456
118.100

1,740,229
28,803
106,122
2.036.044

27.172.754

8,975,893

2,593,856
2,633,789
52,970,590
3,138.140
767,358
592,698
(20.071.029)
42.625.402

51.601.295

S _78.774.049

$ 235,267
13.716.851

13,952,118

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Deposits
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
Unearned Revenue
Compensated Absences
Bonds Payable

Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Bonds Payable
Net Pension Liability
Net OPEB Liability
Compensated Absences

Total Non-Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions and OPEB

NET POSITION

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted:
Expendable
Nonexpendable- Endowments
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

S 351,268
1,073,870
5.549,668

98,984
1.450.000

8,523,790
7,745,000
32,950,000
11.782,148
1.047.349
53.524.497

S 62048287

S 8927877

33,430,402
994,617

200,000
(12.875.016)

321,750,003

The accompanying notcs are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Pledges Receivable - Current
Accounts Receivable - Current
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Long-Term Cash and Investments

Restricted Certificate of Deposit for Long Term Investments
Restricted Cash

Investments

Total Long-Term Cash and Investments

Other Assets
Donated Assets
Pledges Receivable - Non-Current
Contributions Receivable - Non-Current

Total Other Assets

Total Assets

$ 725951

202,695
163.621

6.067.867
3.692

109.041
8.715

121,448

11,397

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable 5 15,465
Deferred Revenue 51.602

Total Current Liabilities 67.067

Total Liabilities 67.067

Net Assets

Without Donor Restrictions 747,653
With Donor Restrictions 6.296.677
Total Net Assets 1044330
Total Liabilities and Net Assects S 7,111,397

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these financial statements.
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OPERATING REVENUES

Student Tuition and Fees (Net of Scholarship Allowances of $3,736,714)

Federal Grants and Contracts

State and Local Grants and Contracts

Auxiliary Enterprises:
Bookstore
Student Activities
Vending
Other
Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Instruction
Academic Support
Student Services
Institutional Support
Operation and Maintenance
Scholarships and Financial Aid
Depreciation
Auxiliary Enterprises
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Loss

Page 30 of 147

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

State Appropriations

Federa] Grants

Investment Income

Unrealized Gain

Other Nonoperating Revenue

Interest on Debt

Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets
Net Nonoperating Revenues

Change In Net Position
Total Net Position - Beginning of Year

Total Net Position - End of Year

$ 15232489
5,909,844
3,232,828

56,492
10,787
1,838
171.536
24.615.814

17,230,729
3,307,665
7.757.854
3,272,555
4,876,768
1,280,660

461.556

42.410.272

(17,794,458)

17,199,091
5,346,740
288,699
95,781
445,051
(285,210)
(453.213)

22.636.939
4,842,481

16.907.522

321,750,003

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these financial statements
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Without

Donor Restrictions

Operating Activities

Revenue and Support:

Contributions

In-Kind Donations

Special Events Income

Other Income

Net Assets Released from
Restrictions

Total Support and Revenue

Expenses:
Program Services

Management and General
Fundraising Expenses
Total Expenses

Change in Net Assets from Operating
Activities

Nonoperating Activities
Interest Income
Investment Return, Net of Fees

Change in Net Assets from Nonoperating
Activities

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets at Beginning of Year

Net Assets at End of Year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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$ 44,094
139,245
39,037

55

367.175

589.606

318,510
160,921
80.653

560.084

30.245

717.408

S 747,653

With

Donor Restrictions Total
$ 428866 § 472,960
- 139,245
65,960 104,997
- 55
(367.175) -
127.651 717.257
- 318,510
- 160,921
- 80.653
- 560.084
127.651 157.173
142,454 143,177
618.294 618.294
760.748 761.471
£88.399 018.644
5,408,278 6.125.686
$ 6,296,677 $ 7,044,330
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Tuition and Fees
Grants and Contracts
Payments to Suppliers
Payments for Utilities
Payments for Employees
Payments for Benefits
Payments for Scholarships
Auxiliary Enterprises
Net Cash Usecd in Operating Activitics

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State and Local Appropriations
Federal Grants
Federal Direct Loan Receipts
Federal Direct Loan Disbursements
Deposit Held for Others
Other Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses), Net
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchasc of Capital Assets and Construction
Principal Paid on Capital Debt
Interest Paid on Capital Debt
Proceeds from Salc of Capital Assets
Net Cash Used in Capital and Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Sale/Maturity of Investments
Purchase of Investments
Interest on Investments
Realized Gain/(Loss) on [nvestments

Net Cash Provided by Investing Aclivitics

Net Increasc in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year

S 14.681,634
7,763,404
(7.480,913)
(590,123)
(20,593,490)
(6,535,417)
(4,836,102)

22

(17.364.659)

17,199,091
5,346,740
11,805,372
(11,805,372)
53,003
480.910

23.079.744

(1.538,127)
(1,559,109)
(211,540)
417.353
(2.891.423)

442,292
(520,597)
288,699
28.502

238.896

3,062,558
—20.080.898

. 23,143.456

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Reconciliation of Net Operating Loss to Net
Cash Used in Operating Activities
Operating Loss $ (17,794,458)

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Operating Loss to Net
Cash Used in Operating Activitics

Depreciation Expense 1,280,660
Pension Expense 3,784,740
Employer Pension Contributions (2,309,430)
OPEB Expense (370,018)
Employer OPEB Contributions (319,280)
Capital Expenditures from Operating (154,715)
Changes in Asscts and Liabilities:
Increase in Receivables (776,964)
Decrease in Inventory 8,768
Decrease in Other Assets 19,250
Increase in Accounts Payable 354,566
Increase in Compensated Absences 79,685
Decrease in Unearned Revenue (1.167.463)
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities S_(17,364,659)

Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities:

The University held investments with a fair value of $9,093,993 at September 30, 2021. During
the year ended September 30. 2021, unrealized gains on these securities were $95,781.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of Athens State University (the “University” or “*ASU™) are prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant
accounting policies of Athens State University are described below.

A. Reporting Entity

Act. No. 2012-497 removed Athens State University from under the jurisdiction, supervision, and
control of the State Board of Education and Department of Postsecondary Education effective
October |, 2012. This legislation enabled the creation of the Board of Trustees of Athens State
University which governs the University. The Board of Trustees has the authority and responsibility
for the operation, management, supervision and regulation of Athens State University. Athens State
University continues to be a component unit of the State of Alabama. A component unit is a legally
separate organization for which the elected officials of the primary government are financially
accountable. Component units can also be other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with a primary government are such that exclusion would cause
the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading. According to GASB Statement 14,
“The Financial Reporting Entity.” a primary government is financially accountable for an
organization if it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing board and (a) is able
to impose its will on the organization; or (b) there is a potential for the organization to provide
specific financial benefits to or impose specific financial burdens on the primary government.
Based upon these criteria, the University is considered to be a component unit of the State of
Alabama.

B. Component Units

Athens State University Foundation (the “Foundation™ or “ASUF") is a legally scparate, tax-
exempl organization that is organized exclusively for charitable, scientific and educational
purposes for the benefit of the University. Because of the significance of the relationship between
the University and the Foundation, the Foundation is considered a component unit of the
University. Organizations that are legally separate, tax-exempt entities and that meet all of the
following criteria should be discretely presented as component units. These criteria are:

o The economic resources received or held by the separate orpanization are entirely
or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the primary government, its component
units, or its constituents.

 The primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to

otherwise access, a majority of the economic resources received or held by the
scparate organization. -
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e The cconomic resources received or held by an individual organization that the
specific primary government, or itscomponent units, is entitled to, or has the ability
to otherwise access, arc significant to that primary government.

Although the University does not control the timing or amount of receipts from ASUF, the majority
of resources, or income thereon that ASUF holds and invests are restricted to the activities of the
University by the donors. Because these restricted resources held by ASUF can only be used by, or
for the benefit of, the University, ASUF is discretely presented as a component unit of the
University. ASUF is reported in its original format on separate financial statements because of the
difference in its reporting model as further described below. Complete financial statements for
ASUF are available from the Foundation’s director upon request.

The Foundation is a not-for-profit organization that reports its financial results under the Financial
Accounting Standard Board (FASB) Statements. Most significant to the Foundation’s operations
and reporting model is Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 958, Not-for-Prafit Entities. As
such, certain revenue recognition criteria and presentation fecatures are different from GASB
revenue recognition criteria presentation features. No modifications have been made to the
Foundation’s financial information in the University’s financial reporting entity for thesc
differences; however, significant note disclosures (sce Note 11) to the Foundation’s financial
statements have becn incorporated into the University's notes to the financial statements. During
the year ended September 30, 2021, Athens State University Foundation, Inc. distributed $409,561
to Athens State University for both restricted and unrestricted purposcs.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

Athens State University follows all applicable GASB pronouncements. The financial statements of
Athens State University have been prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when carned and expenses are recorded
when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Grants and similar
items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requircments imposed by the provider
have been met.

It is the policy of the University to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred and
then apply unrestricted resources when both restricted and unrestricted net position are available.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position distinguishes between
operating and non-operating revenues. Operating revenues, such as tuition and fees, result from
exchange transactions associated with the principal activities of the University. Exchange
transactions are those in which cach party to the transactions reccives or gives up cssentially equal
values. Non-operating revenues arise from cxchange transactions not associated with the
University's principal activities, such as investment income and from all non-exchange
transactions, such as state appropriations.

8%
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D. Accounting Estimates

The preparation of (inancial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from
those estimates.

E. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and
Net Position

1. Deposits and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with
original maturities of three months or less (rom the date of acquisition.

Statutes authorize the University to invest in the same type of instruments as allowed by Alabama
law for domestic life insurance companies. This includes a wide range of investments, such as
direct obligations of the United States of America, obligations issued or guaranteed by certain
federal agencies, and bonds of any state, county, city, town, village, municipality, district or other
political subdivision of any state or any instrumentality or board thereof or of the United States of
America that meet specilied criteria.

Investments are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Recurring fair value measurements
are those that Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements rcqmrc or permit
in the Statement of Net Position at the end of each reporting period.

2. Receivables

Accounts receivable relate to tuition and fees charged to students, amounts due from federal grants,
state grants and third party tuition, net of an allowance for doubtful accounts.

3. Inventories

The inventories are comprised of consumable supplies. Inventories are valued at the lower of cost
or market. Inventories are valued using the [irst in/first out (FIFO) method.

4. Capital Assets

Capital assets with a unit cost of over $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year, and
all library books, are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. In addition. works of art and historical treasures and similar assets are recorded at their
historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at fair market valuc at the date of donation.
Land, construction in progress, and intangible assets with indefinite lives are the only capital assets
that are not depreciated. Depreciation is not allocated to a functional expense category. The costs
of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the valuc of the asset or materially extend its
life are not capitalized.
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Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Maintenance and repairs arc charged to operations when incurred. Betterments and major
improvements which significantly increase values, change capacities or extend uscful lives are
capitalized. Upon the sale or retirement of fixed assets being depreciated using the straight-line
method, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts
and any resulting gain or loss is included in the results of opcration.

The method of depreciation and useful lives of the capital assets are as follows:

Asscts Depreciation Method Useful Lives
Buildings and Improvements Straight-Line 30 years
Improvements other than Buildings Composite 25 years
Equipment Composite ] - 10 years
Library Materials Composite 20 years
Capitalized Software Straight-Line 10 years
Internally Generated Computer Software Straight-Line 10 years
Easement and Land Usc Rights Straight-Line 20 years
Patents, Trademarks, and Copyrights Straight-Line 20 years

S. Long-Term Obligations

Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the Statement of Net
Position. Bond/Warrant premiums and discounts, if any, are deferred and amortized over the life
ol the bonds.

6. Compensated Absences

No liability is recorded for sick leave. Substantially all employces of the University earn 12 days
of sick lcave each year with unlimited accumulation. Payment is not made to employees for unpaid
sick leave at termination or retirement.

All non-instructional employees earn annual lcave at a rate which varies from 12 to 24 days per
year depending on duration of employment, with accumulation limited to 60 days. Instructional
employees do not earn annual leave. Payment is made to employees for unused leave at termination
or retirement.

7. Unearned Revenue
Unearned revenue consists primarily of amounts received for fall student tuition and fees that are

not earncd until the next fiscal year. Uncarned revenue also includes amounts received from grant
and contract sponsors that have not yet been carned.
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8. Pensions

The Teachers’ Retirement System of Alabama (“TRS"™ or “the Plan™) financial statements are
prepared using the economic resources mecasurement focus and accrual basis of accounting.
Contributions are recognized as revenues when carned, pursuant to plan requirements. Benefits and
refunds are recognized as revenues when duc and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.
Expenses are recognized when the corresponding liability is incurred, regardless of when the
payment is made. Investments are reported at fair value. Financial statements arc prepared in
accordance with requirements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Under
these requirements, the Plan is considercd a component unit of the State of Alabama and is included
in the State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

9. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

The Alabama Retired Education Employees’ Health Carc Trust (Trust) financial statements are
prepared by using the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting. This
includes for purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the Trust and additions to/deductions from the Trust’s fiduciary net position. Plan
member contributions are rccognized in the period in which the contributions arec due. Employer
contributions are recognized when due pursuant to plan requirements. Benefits are recognized
when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. Subsequent events were evaluated
by management through the date the financial statements were issued.

10. Net Position

Net position is required to be classified for accounting and reporting purposes into the following
categories:

Net Investment in Capital Assets - Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding
principal balances of debt auributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those
assets. Any significant unspent related debt proceeds at year-end related to capital assets are not
included in this calculation.

Restricied:

Nonexpendable - Net position subject to externally imposed stipulations that it be maintained
permanently by the University. Such assets would include permanent endowment funds.

Expendable - Net position whose use by the University is subject to externally imposed
stipulations that can be fulfilled by actions of the University pursuant to thosc stipulations or
that expire by the passage of time. These include funds held in federal loan programs.

Unrestricted - Net positions that are not subject to externally imposed stipulations. These may be
designated for specific purposes by action of management.
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11. Federal Financial Assistance Programs

The University participates in various federal programs. Federal programs are audited in
accordance with the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).

12. Scholarship Allowances and Student Aid

Student tuition and fees are reported net of scholarship allowances and discounts. The amount for
scholarship allowances and discounts is the difference between the stated charge for goods and
services provided by the University and the amount that is paid by the student and/or third parties
making payments on behalf of the student. The University uses the alternate method as prescribed
by the National Association of College and University Business Officers (NACUBO) in their
Advisory Report (2000-05) to determinc the amount of scholarship allowances and discounts.

13. Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources are reported in the Statement of Net Position. Deferred outflows
of resources are defined as a consumption of net position by the government that is applicable to a
future reporting period. Deferred outflows of resources increase net position, similar to assets.

14. Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred inflows of resources are reported in the Statement of Net Position. Deferred inflows off
resources are defined as an acquisition of net position by the government that is applicable to a
future reporting period. Deferrcd inflows of resources decrease net position, similar to liabilities.
15. Subsequent Events

In preparing these financial statements, the University has evaluated events and transactions for
polential recognition or disclosure through the date of the auditor’s report, which was the date the
financial statements were available to be issucd.

16. Prepaid Expenses and Unearned Scholarships

Prepaid expenses are composed predominantly of prepaid insurance. Unearned scholarship expense

results from the Fall academic term spanning across the fiscal year end. The University prorates
scholarship expense to recognize only the amounts incurred in each fiscal year.
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NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
A. Deposits

The University's deposits in banks at year-end were held by financial institutions in the State of
Alabama's Sccurity for Alabama Funds Enhancement (SAFE) Program. The SAFE Program was
established by the Alabama Legislature and is governed by the provisions contained in the Code of
Alabama 1973, Scctions 41-14A-1 through 41-14A-14. Under the SAFE Program all public funds
are protected through a collateral pool administered by the Alabama State Treasurer's Office. Under
this program, financial institutions holding deposits of public funds must pledge securities as
collateral against those deposits. In the event of failure of a financial institution, securities pledged
by that financial institution would be liquidated by the State Treasurer to replace the public deposits
not covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).

If the securitics pledged fail to produce adequate funds, every institution participating in the pool
would share the liability for the remaining balance. At September 30, 2021, funds held by financial
institutions participating in the SAFE program totaled $23,795,640.

The Statement of Net Position classification “cash and cash equivalents” includes all readily
available cash such as petty cash, demand deposits, and certificates of deposits with maturities of
three months or less.

B. Investments

The University invests its funds in securities and investments in accordance with the Code of
Alabama 1973, Section 16-13-2, Sections 27-1-8 and 27-1-9, and Sections 27-41-1 through 27-4 |-
41. These laws provide that the University may invest in the same type of instruments as allowed
by Alabama law for domestic life insurance companies. This includes a wide range of investments,
such as direct obligations of the United States of America, obligations issued or guaranteed by
certain federal agencies, and bonds of any state, county, city, town, village, municipality, district
or other political subdivision of any state or any instrumentality or board thercof of the United
States of America that meet specified criteria. The University's investment policy permits
investments in the following: 1) U.S. Treasury bills, notes, bonds, and stripped Treasuries; 2) U.S.
Agency notes, bonds, debentures, discount notes and certificates; 3) certificates of deposit (CDs),
checking and money market accounts of savings and loan associations, mutual savings banks, or
commercial banks whose accounts are insured by FDIC/FSLIC, and who are designated a Qualified
Public Depository (QPD) under the SAFE Program; 4) mortgage backed securities (MBSs); 5)
mortgage-related securities including collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs) and real estate
mortgage investment conduits (REMIC) securities; 6) repurchase agreements; and 7) stocks and
bonds which have been donated to the institution.
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Investments are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Recurring fair value measurements are
those that Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements require or permit in the
Statement of Net Position at the end of each reporting period. Fair value measurements are
categorized based on the valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level | inputs are
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable
inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

Investments’ fair value measurements are as follows at September 30, 2021:

IFair Value Measurements Using

Level | Level2  Level 3 Inputs
Investments Fair Value Inputs Inputs
Bond Funds $9.093.993 $9.093.993 3 - $ -
Total Investments $9.093,993 $9.093,993 3 - 3 -

At September 30, 2021, ASU had a significant amount invested in short and long term investments.
primarily tax free bonds. During the year ended September 30, 2021, the University had no realized
losses from the disposal of investments. The calculation of realized gains is independent of the
calculation of the net increase in the fair value of investments. Realized gains and losses on
investments that had been held in more than one fiscal year and sold in the current year may have
been recognized as an increase or decrease in the fair value of investments reported in the prior
year. The University had unrealized gain during the year ended September 30, 2021 of $95,781.

Interest Rate Risk - This risk pertains to changes in interest rates that adversely affect the fair value
of an investment. While there is an active market for the below investments, generally, the longer
the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market
interest rates. The University does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to interest rate risk. Al year end, the University
had the following investments and maturities:

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Investment Type FFair Valhe 15 6-10 Therealter
Bond Funds $9,093,993  $530,900 $1.521,751 $7,041,342

Credit Risk — Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not
fulfill its obligation. The University does not have a formal investment policy that spcclﬁcally
addresses its investment choices related to this risk.
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At September 30, 2021, the allocation of credit ratings of the University’s investments was as
follows:

Investment Type Rating Percentage
Bond Funds AAA 13.70%
Bond Funds AA 41.84%
Bond Funds A 22.81%
Bond Funds BBB 16.28%
Bond Funds BB 1.43%
Bond Funds B 0.57%
Bond Funds NR _331%

100.00%

Custodial Credit Risk — For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a
counterparty, the government will not be able to cover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The University does not have an investment
policy that limits the amount of securities that can be held by counterparties.

Concentration of Credit Risk — Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the
magnitude of a government's investment in a single issuer. The University does not have a formal
investment policy that places limits on the amount the University may invest in any one issuer.

NOTE 3 - RECEIVABLES

Receivables are summarized as follows:

Accounts Receivable:

Federal $ 53,288
Pell Grants 3,248
State 934,987
Third Party 303,209
Returned Checks 1.716
Due from related party 15,104
Other 52,518

Total Accounts Receivable 1.364.070

Student Receivables:

Tuition & Fees 944.809

Total Receivables 2.308.879
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (568.650)

Total Receivables, Net

3 1,740,229
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NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the ycar ended September 30, 2021, was as follows:

Baginning Sading
Balanze Additiens Dedocticns Tramifens Balance
Cagital Assets Not eing Depreciated: ’
Land $ %9386 S - S - S - § 2,563,856
Constroction in Progress £10.238 1.3C5.98% (7L338) (1.132.17D) £52.698
Total Capiial Assets No: Being Depreciated: 3,104,054 1.305.989 (71.358)  (1.182.171) 3.186.553
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Improvemeats Other than 3zildingy 2,633,289 - . - 2,633,789
Sulénps 82,823,502 - (1,604,083) 1151701 £2.570.550
Eqipmen: 328,710 174,446 (65,016) - 3,135,130
Library Holdings 715,056 £7.652 (4,350) - 767.358
Total Capital Assets Seing Dapraciated: $9.201,087 232138 (1.074,389) 1.152.171 $6.505.877
Less Accomclazed Depzeciation:
Improvements Other than Sriléings 1,174,155 77,650 - - 1,251,504
Suildinps 15030918 1,022,738 C5,8°5) - 15,827,788
Egzipment 485,240 145,261 (65,016) - 2,565,518
Library Holdizps 376,33 3357 (5.390) - 205,921
Total Accumulated Depreciation: 19.066.650 1.280.660 (376,251) - 30.071.029
Total Capital Anels, Net S 43238501 S 287467 S (570.566) S - 8 42625302

NOTE 5 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN
A. Plan Description

The TRS, a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement plan, was established as of
September 15, 1939, pursuant to the Cade of Alubama 1975, Title 16, Chapter 25 (Act 419 of the
Legislature of 1939) for the purpose of providing retirement allowances and other specified benefits
for qualified persons ecmployed by State-supported educational institutions. The responsibility for
the general administration and operation of the TRS is vested in its Board of Control which consists
of 15 trustees. The plan is administered by the Retirement Systems of Alabama (RSA). The Code
of Alabama 1975, Title 16, Chapter 25 grants the authority 1o establish and amend the benefit terms
to the TRS Board of Control. The Plan issues a publicly available financial report that can be
obtained at www.rsa-al.gov.
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B. Benefits Provided

State law establishes retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits and any ad hoc
increase in postretirement benefits for the TRS. Benefits for TRS members vest after 10 years of
creditable service. TRS members who retire afterage 60 with 10 years or more of creditable service
or with 25 years of service (regardless of age) arc cntitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable
monthly for life. Service and disability retirement benefits arc based on a guaranteed minimum or
a formula method, with the member receiving payment under the method that yields the highest
monthly benefit. Under the formula method, members of the TRS are allowed 2.0125% of their
average final compensation (highest 3 of the last 10 ycars) for each year of service.

Act 377 of the Legislature of 2012 established a new ticr of benefits (Ticr 2) for members hired on
or after January 1,2013. Tier 2 TRS members arc cligible for retirement after age 62 with 10 years
or more of creditable service and are entitled to an annual retircment benefit, payable monthly for
life. Service and disability retirement benefits arc based on a guarantced minimum or a formula
method, with the member receiving payment under the method that yields the highest monthly
benefit. Under the formula method, Ticr 2 members of the TRS arc allowed 1.65% of their average
final compensation (highest 5 of the last 10 years) for cach ycar of scrvice.

Members are eligible for disability retirement if they have 10 years of credible service, are currently
in-service, and determined by the RSA Medical Board to be permanently incapacitated from further
performance of duty. Preretirement dcath benefits are calculated and paid to the beneficiary based
on the member’s age, service credit, employment status and cligibility for retirement.

C. Contributions

Covered members of the TRS contributed 5% of carnable compensation to the TRS as required by
statute until September 30, 201 1. From October I, 2011, to September 30, 2012, covered members
of the TRS were required by statute to contribute 7.25% of earnable compensation. Effective
October 1, 2012, covered members of the TRS are required by statute to contribute 7.50% of
earnable compensation. Certificd law cnforcement, correctional officers, and firefighters of the
TRS contributed 6% of earnable compensation as required by statute until September 30, 2011.
From October 1,2011, to September 30, 2012, certified law enforcement, correctional officers, and
firefighters of the TRS were required by statute to contributc 8.25% of earnable compensation.
Effective October 1, 2012, certified law enforcement, correctional officers, and firefighters of the
TRS are required by statute to contribute 8.50% of carnable compensation. Ticr 2 covered members
of the TRS contribute 6% of earnable compensation to the TRS as required by statute. Tier 2
certified law enforcement, correctional officers, and firefighters of the TRS are required by statute
to contribute 7% of earnable compensation.
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Participating employers" contractually required contribution rate for the year ended September 30,
2021, was 12.36% of annual pay for Tier I members and |1.22% of annual pay for Tier 2 members.
These required contribution rates arc.a percent of annual payroll, actuarially determined as an
amount that, when combined with member contributions, is expected to finance the costs of
benefits carned by members during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded
accrued liability. Total employer contributions to the pension plan from the University were
$2,309,430 for the year ended September 30, 2021.

D. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At September 30, 2021 the University reporteda liability of $32,950,000 for its proportionate share
of the collective net pension liability. The collective net pension liability was measured as of
September 30, 2021 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of September 30, 2020. The University’s proportion of the
collective net pension liability was based on the employers’ shares of contributions to the pension
plan relative to the total employer contributions of all participating TRS employers. At September
30, 202! the University’s proportion was .2664%, which was a decrease of .0180% from its
proportion measured as of September 30, 2020.

For the year ended September 30, 2021, the University recognized pension expense of $3,768,000.
At September 30, 2021 the University reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
: of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 1,631,000 3 571,000
Changes of assumptions 343,000 -
Net difference between projected and actual camings -
on pension plan investments 2,447,000
Changes in proportion and differences between 1,753,000 630,000
Employer contributions and proportionate sharc of
contributions
Employer contributions subsequent to the 2.309.430 -
measurement date

3 8,483 1,201,000

$2,309,430 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from University
contributions subsequent to the measurcment date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ended September 30, 2022.
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Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended September 30:
2022 $ 1,106,000
2023 1,428,000
2024 1,456,000
2025 983.000
Total 3 4.973.000

E. Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of September 30,2019, with
a measurement date of September 30, 2020, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to
all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.75%
Investment rate of return* 7.70%
Projected salary increases 3.25% - 5.00%

*Net of pension plan investment expense

The actuarial assumptions used in the actuarial valuation as of September 30, 2019, were based on
the results of an investigation of the economic and demographic experience for the TRS based upon
participant data as of September 30, 2015. The Board of Control accepted and approved these
changes in September 2016 which became effective at the beginning of fiscal year 2016.

Mortality rates for TRS were based on the RP-2000 White Collar Mortality Table projected to 2020
using scale BB and adjusted 115% for males and 112% for females age 78 and older.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a log-
normal distribution analysis in which best-cstimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by
adding expected inflation.
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The target asset allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset
class are as follows:

Long-Term
Target Expected Rate
Allocation  of Return*
Fixed Income 17.00% 4.40%
U.S. Large Stocks 32.00% 8.00%
U.S. Mid Stocks 9.00% 10.00%
U.S. Small Stocks 4.00% 11.00%
International Developed Market Stocks 12.00% 9.50%
International Emerging Market Stocks 3.00% 11.00%
Alternatives 10.00% 10.10%
Real Estate 10.00% 7.50%
Cash __3.00% 1.50%

Total 100.00%

*Includes assumed rate of inflation of 2.50%.
F. Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.70%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at
the current contribution rate and that the employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the
difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on those
assumptions, components of the pension plan’s fiduciary net position were projected to be available
to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability. '

G. Sensitivity of the University’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes
in the Discount Rate

The following table presents the System's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 7.70%, as well as what the System’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if'it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower
(6.70%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.70%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Current Rate 1% Increases
(6.70%) (7.70%) (8.70%)
University’s proportionate share of
collective net pension liability $ 43,962,000 $ 32,950,000 $ 23,632,000
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H. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separatcly
issued RSA Comprehensive Annual Report for the fiscal year ended Scptember 30, 2020. The
supporting actuarial information is included in the GASB Statement No. 67 Report for the TRS
prepared as of September 30, 2020. The auditor’s report dated April 16, 2021, on the total pension
liability, total deferred outflows of resources, total deferred inflows of resources, total pension
expense for the sum of all participating cntities as of September 30, 2020, along with supporting
schedules is also available. The additional financial and actuarial information is available at
www.rsa-al.gov.

NOTE 6 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

General Information about the OPEB Plan
Plan description

The Alabama Retired Education Employees’ Health Care Trust (Trust) is a cost-sharing multiple-
cmployer defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan that administers healthcare benefits to
the retirees of participating statc and local educational institutions. The Trust was cstablished under
the Alabama Retiree Health Care Funding Act of 2007 which authorized and directed the Public
Education Employecs’ Health Insurance Board (Board) to create an irrevocable trust to fund
postemployment healthcare benefits to retirees participating in PEEHIP. Active and retiree health
insurance benefits are paid through the Public Education Employces’ Health Insurance Plan
(PEEHIP). In accordance with GASB, the Trust is considered a component unit of the State of
Alabama (State) and is included in the State’s Comprchensive Annual Financial Report.

The PEEHIP was established in 1983 pursuant to the provisions of the Code of Alabama 1975, Title
16, Chapter 254 (Act 83-455) to provide a uniform plan of health insurance for active and retired
employees of state and local educational institutions which provide instruction at any combination
of grades K-14 (collectively, eligible employces), and to provide a method for funding the benefits
related to the plan. The four-year universitics participate in the plan with respect to their retired
employees, and are eligible and may elect to participate in the plan with respect to their active
employees. Responsibility for the establishment of the health insurance plan and its general
administration and operations is vested in the Board. The Board is a corporate body for purposes
of management of the health insurance plan. The Code of Alubama 1975, Section 16-25A-4
provides the Board with the authority to amend the benefit provisions in order to provide rcasonable
assurance of stability in future years for the plan. All assets of the PEEHIP are held in trust for the
payment of health insurance benefits. The Teachers® Retirement System of Alabama (TRS) has
been appointed as the administrator of the PEEHIP and. consequently, scrves as the administrator
of the Trust.
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Benefits provided

PEEHIP offers a basic hospital medical plan to active members and non-Medicare eligible retirees.
Benefits include inpatient hospitalization for a maximum of 365 days without a dollar limit,
inpatient rehabilitation, outpatient care, physician services, and prescription drugs.

Active employces and non-Medicare eligible retirees who do not have Medicarc eligible
dependents can enroll in a health maintenance organization (HMO) in lieu of the basic hospital
medical plan. The MO includes hospital medical benefits, dental benefits, vision benefits, and an
extensive formulary. However, participants in the HMO arc required to receive care from a
participating physician in the 1IMO plan.

The PEEHIP offers four optional plans (lospital Indemnity, Cancer, Dental, and Vision) that may
be selected in addition to or in lieu of the basic hospital medical plan or HMO. The Hospital
Indemnity Plan provides a per-day benefit for hospital confinement, maternity, intensive care,
cancer, and convalescent care. The Cancer Plan covers cancer disease only and benefits are
provided regardless of other insurance. Coverage includes a per-day benefit for each hospital
confinement related to cancer. The Dental Plan covers diagnostic and preventative services, as well
as basic and major dental services. Diagnostic and preventative services include oral examinations,
tecth cleaning, x-rays, and emergency office visits. Basic and major services include fillings,
general aesthetics, oral surgery not covered under a Group Medical Program, periodontics,
cndodontics, dentures, bridgework, and crowns. Dental services are subject to a maximum of
$1,250 per year for individual coverage and $1,000 per person per year for family coverage. The
Vision Plan covers annual eye examinations, cye glasses, and contact lens prescriptions.

PEEHIP members may opt to clect the PEEHIP Supplemental Plan as their hospital medical
coverage in lieu of the PEEIIP Hospital Medical Plan. The PEEMIP Supplemental Plan provides
secondary benefits to the member’s primary plan provided by another employer. Only active and
non-Medicare retirce members and dependents are eligible for the PEEHIP Supplemental Plan.
There is no premium required for this plan, and the plan covers most out-ol-pocket expenses not
covered by the primary plan. The plan cannot be used as a supplement to Medicare, the PEEHIP
Hospital Medical Plan, or the State or Local Governmental Plans administered by the State
Employees’ Insurance Board (SEIB).

Medicare eligible members and Medicare eligible dependents who are covered on a retirec contract
were enrolled in the United Healthcare Group Medicare Advantage plan for PEEHIP retirees.
Effective January 1, 2020, Humana Insurance Company replaced United Healthcare as the
administrator of the PEEHIP Group Medicare Advantage (PPO) Plan. The plan is fully insured and
members are able to have all of their Medicare Part A (hospital insurance), Part B (medical
insurance), and Part D (prescription drug coverage) in one convenient plan. Retirees can continue
to see their same providers with no interruption and sce any doctor who accepts Medicare on a
national basis. Members have the same benefits in and out-of-network and there is no additional
retirce cost share if a retirce uses an out-of-network provider and no balance billing from the
provider.
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Contributions

The Code of Alabama 1973, Section 16-254-8 and the Code of Alabama 1973, Section, 16-234-8.1
provide the Board with the authority to set the contribution requirements for plan members and the
authority to set the employer contribution requirements for ecach required class, respectively.
Additionally, the Board is required to certify to the Governor and the Legislature, the amount, as a
monthly premium per active employee, necessary to fund the coverage of active and retired member
benefits for the following fiscal year. The Legislature then sets the premium rate in the annual
appropriation bill.

For employees who retired after September 30, 2005, but before January 1, 2012, the employer
contribution of the health insurance premium set forth by the Board for each retiree class is reduced
by 2% for each year of service less than 25 and incrcased by 2% percent for cach year of service
over 23 subject to adjustment by the Board for changes in Medicare premium costs required to be
paid by a retirce. In no case does thc employer contribution of the health insurance premium excced
100% of the total health insurance premium cost for the retirce.

For employees who retired afier December 31, 2011, the employer contribution to the health
insurance premium set forth by the Board for each retirce class is reduced by 4% for each year of
service less than 25 and increased by 2% for each year over 23, subject to adjustment by the Board
for changes in Medicare premium costs required to be paid by a retiree. In no case does the
employer contribution of the health insurance premium exceed 100% of the total health insurance
premium cost for the retiree. For employees who retired after December 31, 2011, who are not
covered by Medicare, regardless of years of service, the employer contribution to the health
insurance premium set forth by the Board for cach retirec class is reduced by a percentage equal to
1% multiplied by the difference between the Medicare cntitiement age and the age of the employce
at the time of retirement as determined by the Board. This reduction in the employer contribution
ccases upon notification to the Board of the attainment of Medicare coverage.

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to OPEB

At September 30, 2021, the Athens State Lniversity reported a liability of $11.782,148 for its
proportionate sharc of the net OPEB liability. The nct OPEB liability was measured as of
September 30, 2020 and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of September 30, 2019. The Athens State University
proportion of the net OPEB liability was based on a projection of the Athens State University long-
term share of contributions to the OPEB plan relative to the projected contributions of all
participating employers, actuarially determined. At September 30, 2021, the Athens State University
proportion was 0.181547% percent, which was a decrease of 0.016549% from its proportion
measured as of September 30, 2019.

For the year cnded September 30, 2021, the System recognized an OPEB benefit of $377,824, with
no special funding situations.
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At September 30, 2021, the System reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows

of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows

Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience S 298,787 S 4,235,964
Changes of assumptions 4,115412 2,187,837
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
OPEB plan investments . - 497
Changes in proportion and differences between Employer
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 499,942 1,302,579
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 319,280 -
Total S 5,233,421 S 1,726,877

$319,280 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from the Athens
State University contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction

of the net OPEB liability in the year ended September 30, 2022.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows ol resources and deferred inflows of resources related

to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year ended September 30:

2022 £ (985,669)
2023 (967.721)
2024 (688,532)
2025 (754,901)
2026 298,454
Therecafter 285.633
3 (2,812,736)
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Actuarial assumptions

The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of September 30, 2019,
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.75%
Projected Salary Increases* 3.25% - 5.00%
Long-Term Investment Rate of Return** 7.25%
Municipal Bond Index Rate at the Mcasurement Date 3.00%
Projected Year for Fiduciary Net Position (FNP) to be Depleted 2040
Singe Equivalent Interest Rate at the Measurement Date 3.05%
Healthcare Cost Trend Rate

Pre-Medicare Eligible 6.75%

Medicare Eligible *xk
Ultimate Trend Rate :

Pre-Medicare Eligible 4.75% in 2026

Medicare Eligible 4.75% in 2024

*Includes 3.00% wage inflation.
**Compounded annually, net of investment expense, and includes inflation.
***[nitial Medicare claims are set based on scheduled increases through plan year 2022.

Mortality rates for the period after service retirement are according to the RP-2000 White Collar
Mortality Table projected to 2020 using scale BB and adjusted 115% for all ages for males and
112% for ages 78 and over for females. The rates of disabled mortality were based on the RP-2000
Disabled Mortality Table projected to 2020 using scale BB and adjusted 105% for males and 120%
for females.

The decremental assumptions used in the valuation were selected based on the actuarial experience
study prepared as of September 30, 2015, submitted to and adopted by the Teachers’™ Retirement
System of Alabama Board on September 13, 2016.

The remaining actuarial assumptions (c.g., initial per capita costs, health care cost trends, rate of
plan participation, rates of plan clection, etc.) were based on the September 30, 2019 valuation,
however updated Medicare Advantage premium rates which reflect the repeal of the ACA IHealth
Insurcr Fee, updated Optionals claims costs, and updated participation assumptions were used in
this report.
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The long-term expected return on plan assets is to be reviewed as part of regular experience studies
prepared every five years, in conjunction with similar analysis for the Teachers® Retirement System
of Alabama. Several factors should be considered in cvaluating the long-term rate of return
assumption, including long-term historical data, estimates inherent in current market data, and a
log-normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected return, net of investment expense and inflation), as developed for cach major asset class.

These ranges should be combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting
the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and then adding
expected inflation. The assumption is intended to be a long-term assumption and is not expected to
change absent a significant change in the asset allocation, a change in the inflation assumption, or
a fundamental change in the market that alters expected returns in future years.

The long-term expected rate of return on the OPEB plan investments is determined based on the
allocation of asscts by asset class and by the mean and variance of real returns. The target asset
allocation and best estimates of expected geometric real rates of return for cach major asset class
is summarized below:

Long-Term
Target Expected Rate
Allocation  of Return®
Fixed Income 30.00% 4.40%
U.S. Large Stocks 38.00% 8.00%
U.S. Mid Stocks 8.00% 10.00%
U.S. Small Stocks 4.00% 11.00%
International Developed Market Stocks 15.00% 9.50%
Cash __5.00% 1.50%

Total 400.00%
*Includes assumed rate of inflation of 2.50%.
Discount Rate

The discount rate (also known as the Single Equivalent Interest Rate (SEIR), as described by GASB
74) used to measure the total OPEB liability at September 30, 2020 was 3.05%. The discount rate
used to measure the total OPEB liability at the prior measurement date was 5.50%. Premiums paid
to the Public Education Employees’ Health Insurance Board for active employees shall include an
amount to partially fund the cost of coverage for retired employees. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan contributions will be made at the current
contribution rates. Each year, the State specifies the monthly employer rate that participating school
systems must contribute for cach active employee. Approximately. 14.802% of the employer
contributions were used to assist in funding retirce benefit payments in 2020 and it is assumed that
the amount will increase by 1.00% per year and continue into the future. The discount rate
determination will use a municipal bond rate to the extent the trust is projected to run out of money
before all benefits are paid.
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The rate used for this purpose is the monthly average of the Bond Buyers General Obligation 20-
year Municipal Bond Index Rate. Therefore, the projected future benefit payments for all current
plan members were projected through 21 18. The long-term rate of return is used until the assets are
expected to be depleted in 2040, after which the municipal bond rate is used.

Sensitivity of the Athens State University’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability to
changes in the healthcare cost trend rates.

The following table presents the Athens State University’s proportionate share of the net OPEB
liability of the Trust calculated using the current healthcare trend rate, as well as what the net
OPEB liability would be if calculated using one percentage point lower or one percentage point
higher than the current rate:

1% Decrease
(5.75% decreasing
to 3.75% for pre-

Current Healthcare
Trend Rate
(6.75% decreasing to

1% Increase

(7.75% decreasing to

Mecdicare and 4.75% for pre- 5.75% for pre-
known decreasing to Medicare and known Medicare and known
3.75% for Medicare decreasing to 4.75% decreasing to 5.75%
Eligible) for Medicare Eligible for Medicare Eligible
Net OPEB Liability $ 9,313,826 § 11,782,148 $ 14,995,063

The following table presents the Athens State University's proportionate share of the net OPEB
liability of the Trust calculated using the discount rate of 3.05%, as well as what the net OPEB
liability would be if calculated using one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher

than the current rate:
1% Increase

(4.05%)
9.662,171

Current Discount Rate
(3.05%)
11,782,148 $

1% Decrease
(2.05%)
Net OPEB Liability $ 14,451,415 $

OPEB plan fiduciary net position

Detailed information about the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is located in the Trust's
financial statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020. The supporting actuarial
information is included in the GASB Statement No. 74 Report for PEEHIP prepared as of
September 30, 2020. Additional financial and actuarial information is available at www,rsa-

al.pov.
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NOTE 7 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities represent amounts due at September 30, 2021, for goods
and services received prior to the end of the fiscal year.

Salaries and Wages $ 573.380
Other 500.490
Total $ 1,073,870

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term liabilities activity for the year ended September 30, 2021, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Current Portion
2010 Revenue Bouds  § 3,200000 S - §320000 S - $ -
2015 Revenue Bonds 5,285,000 - 5,285,000 - -
ACA Phase I 269,109 - 2,269,109 - -
2021 Revenue Bonds - 10,595,000 1,400,000 9,193,000 1,450,000
Other Liabilities:
Compensated Absences 1,066,648 79,683 - 1,146,333 98,954
$11,820,7257  S10674,685  S12,154,109  $10,3%1,333 S 1,548,984

Principal and interest maturity requirements on bond debt are as follows:

Revenue Bonds

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Totals
2021-2022 S 1450000 S 149320 S 1,599,320
2022-2023 1,476,000 123,245 1,599,745
2023-2024 1,502,000 97,698 1,599,698
2024-2025 1,328,000 71,208 1,599,208
2025-2026 600,000 31,870 631,870
2026-2027 600,000 41,370 641,370
2027-2028 606,000 30,796 636,796
2028-2029 606,000 20,243 626,243
2029-2030 617,000 9,549 626,549
2030-2031 210,000 769 210,769

S 9195000 § 396368 S 9,791,568
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Pledged Revenues

The University issued Athens State University Tuition and General Fees Revenue Bond, Series
2021, in February 2021, to refinance the 2010, 2015 and ACA Phase 1 revenue bonds in full. The
bond was authorized in the original amount of $10,595,000. The 2021 general fee revenue bond
has an interest rate of 1.75% and a maturity date of January 2031. These bonds were secured by a
pledge of revenue from certain fees payable by students. This transaction met the requirements of
a defeasance of the Series 2010, Series 2015 and ACA Phase 1l revenue bonds.

Future revenues in the approximate amount of $9,791,568 are pledged to repay principal and interest
for the 2021 bond. During the 2021 fiscal year, pledged tuition and fee revenue in the amount of
$15,232,489 were reccived with $1,770,650 or 11.62% of pledged revenues, being used to pay
principal and interest.

NOTE 9 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The University is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The
University has insurance for its buildings and contents through the State Insurance Fund (SIF),
part of the State of Alabama, Department of Finance; Division of Risk Management which
operates as a common risk management and insurance program for state owned properties.

The University pays an annual premium based on the amount of coverage requested. The SIF
provides coverage up to $2 million per occurrence and is self-insured up to a maximum of $6
million in aggregate claims. The SIF purchases commercial insurance for claims which in the
aggregate exceed $6 million. The University purchases commercial insurance for its automobile
coverage, general liability, legal liability, cyber risk coverage and professional liability. In
addition, the University has fidelity bonds on the University's President, Vice-President of Financial
Affairs, as well as on all other University personnel who handle funds.

Employee health insurance is provided through the Public Education Employees' Health Insurance
Fund (PEEIIF) administered by the Public Education Employees' Health Insurance Board
(PEEHIB). The Fund was established to provide a uniform plan of health insurance for current and
retired employees of state educational institutions and is self-sustaining. Monthly premiums for
employee and dependent coverage are determined annually by the plan’s actuary and based on
anticipated claims in the upcoming year, considering any remaining fund balance on hand available
for claims. The University contributes a specified amount monthly to the PEEHIF for each
employee and this amount is applied against the employee's premiums for the coverage selected and
the employee pays any remaining premium. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not
exceeded the University's coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
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Claims which occur as a result of employee job-related injuries may be brought before the State
of Alabama Board of Adjustment. The Board of Adjustment serves as an arbitrator and its
decision is binding,. [f the Board of Adjustment determines that a claim is valid, it decides the
proper amount of compensation (subject to statutory limitations) and the funds are paid by the
University.

NOTE 10 - UNCERTAINTIES

The ongoing COVID-19 pandemic has caused an economic downturn on a global scale, disrupted
global supply chains, and created significant uncertainty, volatility, and disruption across
cconomies and financial markets. The COVID-19 pandemic remains a rapidly evolving situation.
The extent of the impact of COVID-19 on the University and its financial results will depend on
future developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak within the markets in which
the University operates and the related impact on consumer confidence and spending, all of which
are highly uncertain.

NOTE 11 - ATHENS STATE UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
SATEMENTS

A.ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Oreanization

The Athens State University Foundation (the Foundation) was established to provide support for
the private fundraising efforts of the Athens State University (the University) and to manage
privately donated funds. The Foundation is a nonprofit corporation organized in accordance with
the laws of the State of Alabama and governed by a volunteer Board of Directors (Board). The
Foundation is a component unit of the University.

The private fundraising efforts of the University and the Foundation result in the Foundation
receiving contributions for the benefit of the University. Contributions are cither available to be
used currently or restricted as an endowment to be invested in perpetuity and provide support from
investment returns for student scholarships, faculty and research support, other operational support,
and for facilities and equipment. Fundraising cfforts also result in the creation of charitable trusts
and gift annuities. When the trusts and annuities mature, the remainder interests are available for
the designated purposes as current-use or endowment gifis. The Foundation is the trustee for
substantially all of the charitable remainder trusts. The Foundation also receives unrestricted
contributions that can be used for Foundation activities. The Foundation devotes all its income and
profits, after paying ils expenses, for the benefit of the University.

Contributions may be received in cash, marketable securities, real property. tangible personal
property, gifts-in-kind, life insurance policics, and various deferred giving vehicles. Contributions
rececived in forms other than cash, except gifts-in-kind and life insurance policies, are generally
liquidated. The proceeds, together with cash gifts, are placed in investment pools or other
investments consistent with the purpose of the gift or the requirements of the trust agreement.

47





Page 58 of 147

Athens State University
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

The Foundation employs investment professionals to manage its investment pools and certain trust
investments.

The Foundation provides financial support for the University’s private fundraising cfforts,
maintains donor records, issues reports to donors, and provides certain direct University support at
the request of the University.

Mission Statement

The Athens State University Foundation Inc., an incorporated non-profit organization, is dedicated
to the financial support of Athens State University through the identification of prospective donors,
the solicitation of gifts, and the administration and management of those resources for the
betterment of the University, its faculty, staff and students.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Foundation have been prepared on the accrual basis in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The financial
statements are prescnted in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 958 dated August 2016, and the provisions of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) “Audit and Accounting Guide for
Not-for-Profit Organizations” (the “Guide™). (ASC) 958-203 was effective January 1, 2018. Under
the provisions of the Guide, net assets and revenues, and gains and losses are classified based on
the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Accordingly, the net assets of the Foundation and changes therein are classified as follows:

o Net assets without donor restrictions — Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Foundation.

e Net assets with donor restrictions — Net asscts subject to stipulations imposed by donors, and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by
actions of the Foundation or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity. Net asscts
released from restrictions represent expenses incurred during the year that satisfy the restricted
purpose. Of the restricted balances at September 30, 2021, $5,343,338 is restricted for
scholarship purposes while $9353,339 is restricted for program support services.

Net assets were released from donor-imposed restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the
restricted purposes or by occurrence of other events specified by donors.
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The composition of net assets released from restrictions for the year ended September 30, 2021 is
as follows:

With Donor

Restrictions
Program Services S 121,466
Scholarships 245.709
Total $_362.173

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements

In preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Foundation estimates the allowance based on an anmalysis of specific donors, taking into
consideration the age of past duc amounts and an assessment of the donor’s ability to pay. On a
continuing basis, the Foundation analyzes delinquent receivables, and once these receivables are
determined to be uncollectible, they arc written off through a charge against an existing allowance
account. The Foundation considers all receivables at September 30, 2021 to be collectible.

Fixed Assets

Donated artifacts and collectibles are recorded at cost if purchased or, if donated, at estimated fair
value at the time of donation. The Foundation does not recognize depreciation on artifacts and
collectibles. Collections are preserved and held for public exhibition, education and research. It is
the policy of the Foundation that proceeds from the sale of any collection items are to be used to
purchase additional collection items or for the direct care of existing collections. In addition, the
Foundation utilizes certain facilities owned by the University. Such facilities are not recorded on
the books of the Foundation.

Contributions

Contributions, including unconditional promiscs to give, are recognized as revenues in the period
received. Conditional promises to give are not recognized until they become unconditional; that is
when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met. Contributions of assets other than
cash are recorded at their estimated fair value. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are
reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions if the restrictions expire in the fiscal
year in which the contributions arc recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are reported
as increases in net asscts with donor restrictions depending on the nature of the restrictions.
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When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without
donor restrictions.

Contributions to be received after one year are discounted at an appropriate discount rate.
Amortization of discounts is recorded as additional contribution revenue in accordance with donor-
imposed restrictions, if any, on the contributions.

Special Events

The Foundation receives income from various special fund raising events. Gross income is reported
as revenues in the financial statements and expenses are reported separately. The Foundation
recognizes revenues from these special fund raising events when the special event occurs. For
special events in which income is received in one period, but the event occurs in a subsequent
period, the Foundation recognizes the income as deferred revenue until the event takes place.

Revenue Recognition

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). collectively ASC
606, which affects contracts with customers to transfer goods or services and contracts for the
transfer of non-financial assets (unless those contracts are within the scope of other standards). In
June 2020, FASB issued ASU 2020-05, Revenue from Contract with Customers (Topic 606) and
Leases (Topic 842), permitting the deferral of the effective date of ASU 2014-09 to annual
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. The Foundation adopted Topic 606 effective
October |, 2020, using the modified retrospective method. Adoption of this standard did not result
in an adjustment to net assets.

Income Taxes

The Foundation is exempt from paying tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.
Accordingly, there is no provision for federal or state income taxes.

Uncertain Tax Positions

The Foundation is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code, except on net income derived from unrelated business activities. The Foundation
had no unrelated business activities that are subject to taxes. The Foundation's federal Exempt
Organization Business Income Tax Returns for 2018, 2019 and 2020 are subject to examination by
the IRS, generally for three years after they were filed.

Uncertainties
The ongoing COVID-19 pandemic has caused an economic downturn on a global scale, disrupted

global supply chains, and created significant uncertainty, volatility, and disruption across
economies and financial markets. The COVID-19 pandemic remains a rapidly evolving situation.
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The extent of the impact of COVID-19 on the Foundation and its financial rcsults will depend on
future developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak within the markets in which
the Foundation operates and the related impact on consumer confidence and spending, all of which
are highly uncertain.

Subsequent Events

In preparing these financial statements, the Foundation has cvaluated events and transactions for
potential recognition or disclosure through the date of the auditor’s report, which was the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 2 - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

At September 30, 2021, the Foundation had $366,340 of financial asscts available within one yecar
of the statement of financial position date to meet cash nceds for gencral operating expenditures,
consisting of cash of $339,699 and accounts receivable of $26,641.

NOTE 3-CASH AND CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSITS

The Foundation considers all time deposits, certificates of deposit and highly liquid instruments
with an initial maturity of threce months or less to be cash cquivalents, except for investments
purchased with endowment assets, which are classificd as long-term investments. The Foundation
maintains its cash balances with onc linancial institution. At September 30. 2021, the Foundation’s
cash balance excceds FDIC insurable limits by $767.904.

NOTE 4 - INVESTMENTS

The primary purpose of the Athens State University Foundation is to receive and hold by gift,
bequest, or purchase any real or personal property and to manage, invest, and reinvest the same and
to use and to dispose of the same for scientific, literary and cducational purposes. all for the purpose
of Athens State University. Specifically, the Foundation is accountable for protecting the corpus of
each scholarship endowment and responsible for properly investing each scholarship endowment
to produce an annual scholarship. The investment objectives arc to generate sufTicient income that
will be used to fund full or partial student scholarships. The endowment should include an element
of growth to protect the endowment from the effects of inflation. The principal shall remain a
protected corpus.

Investment Reporting

Securily transactions are recorded on a trade date basis. Intercst is recorded as earned and dividends
are recorded as of the cx-dividend date. Investment income includes interest and dividends;
rcalized/unrcalized gains and losses arc reported as investment return. Investment income
attributable to amounts held for the benefit of the University is reported in net assets with donor
restrictions.
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When the activities occur, the amounts are transferred from net assets with donor restrictions to net
assets without donor restrictions and the disbursements are reported as decreases in nct assets
without donor restrictions. Investment income attributable to amounts held for the benefit of the
Foundation is reported in net assets without donor restrictions.

Investment Return Objective Risk Parameters and Strategies

The Foundation has adopted investment and spending policies, approved by the Board of Directors,
for endowment assets that attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported
by its endowment funds whilc maintaining the purchasing power of those endowment assets over
the long term. Accordingly, the investment process seeks to achieve an after-cost total real rate of
return, including investment income as well as capital appreciation, which exceeds the annual
distribution with acceptable levels of risk. Endowment assets are invested in a well-diversified asset
mix, which includes equity and debt securities, that is intended to result in a consistent inflation-
protected rate of return that has sufficient liquidity to make an annual distribution of five percent,
while growing the funds if possible. Actual returns in any given year may vary from this amount.

Spending Policy

The Foundation Executive Committce, based on the recommendation of the Foundation Investment
Committee and the Investment Fund Manager, will determine annually the amount/percent of
scholarship funds to be awarded through the Endowed Scholarship Fund. The annual return on
investment and preservation of the invested corpus are factors that may be used to determine
disbursements for endowed scholarships. A maximum rate of five percent may be distributed from
the Foundation’s Endowed Scholarship Fund. ‘The annual recommended rate will be forwarded to
the University Scholarship Committee.

Funds with Deficiencics

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor restricted endowment
funds may fall below the level that the donor requires the Foundation to retain as a fund of perpetual
duration due to unfavorable market fluctuations. When this is the case, any such deficiencies are
monitored for future results. At September 30. 2021, there were no funds with deficiencies.
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Changes in endowment net asscts as of September 30, 2021:

Without Donor  With Donor

Restrictions  Restrictions Total

Endowment net assets — 10/1/2020 $ 186445 S 4,613,743 S 4,800,188
Contributions, nct - 418,963 418,963
Investment income (loss), net of
fees - 618,294 618,294
Amounts appropriated for

expenditure - (307.662) (307.662)
Endowment net assets — 9/30/2021 S 186445 $.5,343,338 $£.5.529,783

For the year ending Scptember 30, 2021, investment management fees were $43,227.

Investments by Group

General
Investment
Pool
Certificate of Deposits $ 202,695
Marketable Mutual Funds 5.701.551
Total A 25,904,246

NOTE 5-FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Investment Valuation

Investments are reported at estimated fair value as determined by the Foundation, based upon a fair
value hierarchy that prioritizes the input techniques used to measure fair value in accordance with
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-07, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820):
Disclosures for Investments in Certain Entities that Calcudate Net Asset Value per Share (or its
Equivalent). The ASU removed the requirement to categorize by level within the fair value
hierarchy all investments with fair value measured using net asset value as a practical expedient

and removed all other disclosure requirements.
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The hierarchy gives the highest priority to level 1 measurements and the lowest priority to level 3
measurements:

e Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

» Level 2: Quoted prices (or similar asscts or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for
identical or similar asscts or liabilities in markets that are not considered active; observable
inputs other than obscrvable quoted prices for the asset or liability; or inputs derived
principally from or corroborated by obscrvable market data;

¢ Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs for assets or liabilitics.

A financial instrument’s level within this fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any
input that is significant to its fair value measurement. All transfers between fair value hierarchy
levels are recognized at the beginning of each reporting period. The fair value hierarchy does not
correspond to a financial instrument’s relative liquidity in the market or to its level of risk.

In determining the reasonableness of the fair value measurement methodology, management, with
the oversight of the Investment Committee, cvaluates a variety of factors including review of
existing contracts, economic conditions, and industry and market developments. Certain
unobservable inputs are evaluated and adjusted, as necessary, based on current market conditions
and other third-party information.

Level 1 investments are typically investments in debt and equity marketable securities but may also
include money market funds, certificates of deposit, and other highly liquid investments with
maturities of 90 days or less with high credit quality entities. All level 1 investments are reported
at fair value.

The following table set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Foundation's investments
measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of September 30, 2021:

Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cenrtificates of Deposits $ 202695 $ - $ - $ 202,695
Money Market 50,146 - - 50,146
Mulual Fund 892,830 - - 892,830
Asset Backed Securities 185.974 - - 185,974
Close End Funds & Exchange
Traded Products 812,699 - - 812,699
Common Stocks 1,698,975 - - 1,698,975
Government Sccurities 997.704 - - 997,704
PACE Equities 264.219 - - 264,219
. PACE Fixed Income 178,554 - - 178,554
Comporatc Bonds and Notes 620,450 - - 620,450
£35.904,246 % - ) s $5,904,246
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NOTE 6 - PLEDGE RECEIVABLES

Pledge receivables, which are unconditional promises to give, are recorded as receivables and
revenue when received. The Foundation distinguishes between contributions received for each net
asset category in accordance with donor-imposed restrictions. Pledges are recorded after being
discounted to the anticipated net present value of the future cash flows. For pledges, the discount
rates used to determine present values are based on U.S. Treasury note rates for comparable
maturities at the date of the pledge. These average to approximately 1.2%.

Total pledge receivables discounted to present value at September 30, 2021, are as follows:

Less Than One One to Five More Than Five
Year Years Years Total
Pledges $ 51,734 3 98,000 $ 31,000 $ 180,734
Discount - (18,278) (1,681) (19,959)
s 51,734 b 79,722 $ 29,319 $ 160,775

NOTE 7 - CONTRIBUTION RECEIVABLE

The Foundation was named the beneficiary of a gift annuity contract during the year-ended
September 30, 2018. The Foundation is not obligated under this contribution and is expected to
receive the contribution in more than five years per the estimated life expectancy of the donor. The
Foundation has recorded the contribution as the estimated remaining market value at the expected
payment date of $8,715 at September 30, 2021.

NOTE 8 - RELATED PARTY

University Support

The Athens State University Foundation exists to assist the University. Due to the nature of this
relationship, there are numerous transactions between the two entities and their representatives for
program services and scholarship purposes. During the year ended September 30, 2021, the
Foundation expended $409,561 in support of the University’s programs and scholarships. At
September 30, 2021, the Foundation had no payables due to or pledge receivables from the
University.

Personnel Costs and Facilities

The Foundation uses office space owned by the University without paying rent for the facilities.
The value of the donated facilities was $45,271 for the year ending September 30, 202l.
Furthermore, the Foundation employees are paid by the University. The salaries and benefits for
year ending September 30, 2021, were $92,557. The value of donated facilities and services were
recognized as revenue and related expense in the statement of activities.
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NOTE 9 - FUNCTIONAL ALLOCATION OF EXPENSES

Certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited based on
estimates of time and effort, and usage of assets. For 2021, natural expense accounts were allocated

as follows:
Year Ending September 30, 2021
Program
Services Supporting Services
Management Supporting

Programs and General  Fundraising Subtotal Total
Scholarships Awarded $ 245709 S .S .S S S 245709
Academic Program Support 476 - - - 476
Kares Program Support 7,208 - - - 7.208
Student and Faculty Support 2,000 - - - 2,000
Other Program Support 63,117 - - - 63,117
Legal & Accounling - 700 - 700 700
Marketing - 1.579 - 1,579 1,579
Insurance - 1.155 - 1,155 1,155
Fundraiser & Volunteer - - 80.653 80,653 80,653
General Support - 157.487 - 157.487 157.487
Total $ 318510 S 160921 S 80653 $ 241,574 § 560,084
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Schedule of Athens State University’s Proportionate Share of the Net Peasion Liability
Teachers® Retirement Plan of Alabhama

For the measurement period ended September 30,

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2018 2014
ASU's proportion of the
net pension linbily 0.2664% 0.2483% 0.2587% 0.2587% 0.2501% 0.2444% 0.2477%
ASU's proportiomate share

of thenet pension liabilty ~ $32.950,000 $27.459.000 $25.648,000 $25.426,000 $27.086,000 $25.582,000 $22.501,727

ASU’s covered-cmployee
[payrol $18,988,005 S18.864.277 S$17.202.826 S17.067.750 SI15.880,787 $15.451.952 $15,709.007

ASU’s proportionate share
ofthe not pension Kability
as a percentage of &s

od-c cenavroll
covered-cmployeepayol 1oy G306 14556%  149.09%  14B9T%  170.56%  165.56%  143.24%
Plan fiduckwry et position
as a percentage of the total
pension lability 67.72% 09.85% 72.29% 71.50% 62.93% 67.51% 71.01%

Notes to the Schedule of Athens State University's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Linbility

This schedule presents only seven years of information. rather than ten years. as only seven years of trend information is available o
September 30, 2021,
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Athens State University
Schedule of Athens State University's Pension Contributions
Teachers® Retirement Plan of Alabama

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Comracnally Requined ” Y " N

Contbtion $2300430 S$2313.M0 SL159.058 S2.070.740 $2.024910 $1.880,030 S1.748.180
Contriburians in rebation to the 2309430 2313740 2150058 2070740 2024910  1.880,030 1748180
conacially required contribution

Contribuion deficiency’ (excuss) - - - - - - -
:::‘;‘;m‘“'“"‘""b-‘“ $19.163.535 S18988.005 S17.708.036 $17.202.826 $17.067.750 $15.880,787 S15.451.952
Comsbuorsasaperoemiageol 5 gcor 151000 12099 1204% 1LEG%  1184%  1130%
cowred-enplosee payroll

Nates to the Schedule of ASU Pension Contributions
This schedule presents only seven years of information, rather than ten years, as only seven years of trend information is available at
Scptember 30, 2021.
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Athens State University
Schedule of Athens State University's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability

For the measurement period ended September 30,
2020 2019 2018 2047

Athens State University’s proportion of the niet
OPER tmbility Q.I81547%  0.198096% 0.190096% 0. 188843%
Athens State University's proportionate share off
the net
OPER lksbility 1.782,48  7473,702 15,697,619 14,026,179
Athens State University's covercd-employee
payroll 19,163,335  1898R.003 12,708,036 17.202,826
Athens State University's propertionate share of
the net
OPLR Inbity (asset) as a percentage of s
covered-coployee payroll 61.48% 39.36% 88.64% 81.53%
Plan fduciary net position as a percentage of the
lixal OPER lablay 19.80% 28.14% 14.81% 15.37%

Notes to the Schedule of Athens State University's Proportionate Share of the Net OPER Linbility

This schedule presents only four years of information, rather than ten years. as only four years of trend information is available at
September 30, 2021,
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Athens State University
Schedule of Athens State University's OPEB Contributions

Alabama Retired Education Emplovees® Health Care Trust

2021 2020 2019 2018

Contractually required contribution S 359489 S 563409 S 468,981 S 1447743
iConm'bmionsin relation to the contractually required (359,189 (563,409) " (468,981) (1,.447,743)
JConm'bﬁon deficiency (excess) - - - -
Athens State University covered-employvee

[payroll 19,163,535 18,988,005 17,708,036 17,202,826
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee

payroll 1.88% 297% 2.65% $42%

Notes to the Schedule of ASU OPEB Centributions

This schedule presents only four years of information, rather than ten years, as only lour years of trend information is available at September
30. 2021,
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Athens State University
Schedule of Athens State University’s Contributions

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

Changes in actuarial assumptions

In 2019, the anticipated rates of participation, spouse coverage, and tobacco use were adjusted to
more closely reflect actual expericnce.

In 2016, rates of withdrawal, retircment, disability, mortality, spouse coverage, and tobacco usage
were adjusted to more closely reflect actual experience. In 2016, economic assumptions and the
assumecd rates of salary increase were adjusted to more closely reflect actual and anticipated
experience. In 2016 and later, the expectation of retired life mortality was changed to the RP-2000
White Collar Mortality Table projected to 2020 using scale BB and adjusted 1 15% for all ages for
males and 112% for ages 78 and over for females.

Recent Plan Changes

Beginning in plan year 2021, the UnitedHealthcare Medicare Advantage Plan with Prescription
Drug Coverage (MAPD) plan premium rates exclude Affordable Care Act (ACA) Health Insurer
Fee which was repealed on December 20, 2019.

Effective January 1, 2017, Medicare eligible medical and prescription drug benefits are provided
through the MAPD plan.

The Health Plan is changed each year to reflect the ACA maximum annual out-of-pocket amounts.

Method and assumptions used in calculations of actuarially determined contributions

The actuarially determined contribution rates in the Schedule of OPEB Contributions were
calculated as of September 30, 2016, which is three ycars prior to the end of the fiscal year in
which contributions are reported. The following actuarial methods and assumptions were used to
determine the most recent contribution rate rcported in that schedule:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Amortization AMethod Level percent ofpay
Remaining Amortization Period dd vears, closed
Asset Valuation Method Market Value of Assets
Inflatdon 275%
Healthcare Cost Trend Rate:
Pre-Medicare Eligible 7.00%
Medicare Eligible* 5.00%
Ultimate Trend Rate:
Pre-Medicare Bigible 1.75%
Medicare Eligible 1.75%
Year o fUltimate Trend Rate 2026 for Pre-\f edicare Eligible
2024 for M edicare Eligible
Investment Rate o fRetum 5.00%, including inflation

*lnicial Nfecicare claim 2 are et based on icheddedincreases throush plan
year 2019,
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Athens State University
Listing of University Officials
October 1, 2020 through September 30, 2021

Officials Position

Dr. Philip Way President

Mr. Mike McCoy Vice President of Financial Affairs

Ms. Sarah McAbee Vice President for Enroliment & Student Scrvices
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AULDIN
& | ENKINS

CPAs & ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Trustees
Athens State University

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of
Athens State University (the University) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2021, and the
related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 18, 2022.
The financial statements of Athens State University Foundation, a discretely presented component
unit of Athens State University, were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards, and accordingly, this report does not include reporting on internal control over financial
reporting or instances of reportable .noncompliance associated with Athens State University
Foundation.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the University's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the University's
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the University's
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent
or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiencyis a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

213 SOUTH HOUSTON STREET » ATHENS, Al. 3561 ) « 250-232.2260 « §55-891-0070 « FAX 256-232-1881 » www mjcpa.com
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Athens State University's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However. providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

o # Gl KLL

Athens, Alabama
March 18, 2022
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AULDIN
& J ENKINS

CPAs & ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Program
and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

To the Board of Trustces
Athens State University

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Athens State University’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each
of the Athens State University's major lederal programs for the ycar ended September 30, 2021.
Athens State University’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The financial statements
of Athens State Foundation were not audited in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, and
accordingly, this report does not extend to Athens State University Foundation.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for cach of Athens State University's
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards gencrally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Reguirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain rcasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material cffect on a major
federal program occurred. An audit includes cxamining, on a test basis, cvidence about Athens
State University's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as
we considercd necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Athens State
University's compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Athens State University complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirecments referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of
its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2021.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Athens State University is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Athens State University's internal
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect
on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Athens State
University's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severc than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficicncies in internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of thal testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly. this report is not suitable for any other

purpose.

o # G, K

Athens, Alabama
March 18, 2022
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Athens State University

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021
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Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/
({11

MAJOR PROGRAMS
S Fi Awsistance Cluster
t e 2 inn_Di
Federa) Pell Grant Program
Federal Direct Stedent L.oans
Federal Werk-Study Program
Federal Supplemental Education Opportunity Grants

Teacher Education Assistance for College and
Highier Education Grants (TEACH Granis)

Total Student Financial Assistance Cluster

LS. bepaniment of Fducation Direct Programs
Education Stabilization Fund

Education Stabilization Fund
Education Stabilization Fund
Education Stabilization Fund
Education Stbilization Fund

Total Education Stabilization Fund

Total Major Programs

Assistance

Listing
Number

84.063
84.268
84033

84007

84.379

83.425C
44 425E
84 425F
84.425M

84.425p

67

Pass-Thraugh
Entity ldeatifying
Sumber

N.A
NA.
NA.

NA,

NA.

N.A
N.A
NA
N.A

NA,

Passcd Through to
Subrecipicats

Total Federal
Expenditures

$ 5238455
11,805,372
115,000

132049

143,238
17433114

1.032,769
1.188936
2406128
104,873
170,804
4,908,810

$ 22,342,979





Athens State University
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Kor the Year Ended Scptember 30, 2021
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Assistance Pass-Through

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/ Listinp Entity ldentifying
Propram or Cluster Title Number Numbee
NON-MAJOR PROGRAMS
Office of Postsecondary Education
Title N Pact A Programs - Sircngthening Institutions BL031A N.A
Nitinnal Science len Dircet I* m
Education and Human Resousces 47076 N.A

Improving Tescher Quality State Grants 84.367 NA.

‘Total Non-Major I'rograms
Total Federal Awards

N.A. = Not Asailable

Passcd Through to
Subrecipicnts

The accompanying Notes 1o the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are an integral part of this schedule.

68

Total Federal

Expenditures

S 463679

64.984

2083

610 736

£.22953,670
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Athens State University
Notes to the Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the “Schedule™) includes the
federal award activity of Athens State University (the “University™) under programs of the federal
government for the year ended September 30, 2021. The information in this schedule is presented
inaccordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of
the University, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net
position or cash flows of the University.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. The
University has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimus indirect cost rate allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.

For purposes of the Schedule, federal awards include all grants, contracts and similar agrecments
entered into directly between the University and agencies and departments of the federal
government and all subawards to the University by nonfederal organizations pursuant to federal
grants, contracts and similar agreements. The awards are classified into Type A and Type B
categories in accordance with the provisions of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Programs classified as Type A are as follows:

Swudent Financial Assistance Programs
Education Stabilization Fund
Assistance Listing Numbers

Assistance Listing (formerly Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance, CFDA) numbers are
assigned to contracts and grants on the basis of program type. Assistance Listing numbers and
pass-through numbers are provided when available.

NOTE 3 - FEDERAL DIRECT STUDENT LOAN PROGRAM (Assistance Listing
Number 84.268)

The Direct Loan program enables an eligible student or parent to obtain a loan to pay for the
student’s cost of attendance directly through the University rather than through private lenders. As
a university qualified to originate loans, the University is responsible for handling the complete
loan origination process, including funds management and promissory note functions. During the
program year, the University processed approximately $12 million of student loans under the
Direct Loan program.
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Athens State University
Notes to the Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

NOTE 4 - RECONCILIATION OF THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAL AWARDS TO THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

The following schedule is a reconciliation of total federal expenditures as shown on the Schedule
of Expenditures of Federal Awards to the revenue items shown on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position for the ycar ended September 30, 2021.

Federal Grants and Contracts— Operating Revenue S 5,909,844
Federal Grants — Nonoperating Revenue 5,346,740
Fall 2021 Dcferred Pell Grant Revenue 1,209,072
Fall 2020 Deferred Pell Grant Revenue (1,317,358)
Federal Dircct Student Loans 11,805.372
Expenditures per Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards $.22,953,670
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PART IV

SCHEDULES OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS






Athens State University
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021
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Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? yes _X _.no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X__none reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X_no
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? yes X _no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes _X none reported
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major Unmaodified
programs:
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a) __yes X _no
Identification of major programs:
CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
Student Financial Assistance Cluster
84.063 Federal Pell Grant Program
84.268 Federal Dircet Student Loans
84.033 Federal Work-Study Program
84.007 [Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants
84.379 Teacher Education Assistance for College and Higher
Education Grants (TEACH Grants)
84.425 Education Stabilization Fund
Threshold used to determine Type A and Type B Programs: S 750.000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X __yes __ no

Section II — Financial Statement Findings

The audit did not disclose any financial statement findings required to be reported.
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Athens State University
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Section 111 — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

The audit did not disclose any federal award findings or questioned costs required to be reported.





Page 86 of 147

%ATHENS STATE

NV e RS R T

OFFICE OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS
Founders Hall

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

None noted in the prior year.
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ATHENS STATE UNIVERSITY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

RECOMMENDATION FOR ACTION

DATE OF BOARD MEETING: May 20,2022
ACTION ITEM TITLE: Horizon 2030 Report Card 2020-2021 Acceptance
RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the Athens State University Board of Trustees accept the 2020-
2021 Horizon 2030 Report Card as presented.

FISCAL CONSIDERATION: None.

RATIONALE:
Pursuant to the Strategic Planning policy, the strategic planning committee is responsible
for submitting an annual progress report to the President and the Board of Trustees.

) %)70[ N
Macke Mauldin, Chair pro tempore " Date
MissyWMing Smith, Vice Chair pro tempore Date
WD K. (Ao 5(20{2.1_
Philip Way, Presidept’of Atljens State University Date
A,
ﬂ&d@b pochH/ 05/20[202. 7

]a%kié/Gooch, Secretary to the Board of Trustees Date
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Horizon 2030 Strategic Plan Report Card
Academic Year/Fiscal Year 2020-2021

During the 2019-20 academic year, the Athens State University (ATSU) campus community reviewed
results of the Vision 2020 strategic plan and feedback was collected from all stakeholder groups. This
valuable input resulted in the creation of the Horizon 2030 strategic plan, which is comprised of five
enduring strategic plan goals. Vice presidents and directors from across the institution identified over
50 metrics and tactics to measure progress toward the Horizon 2030 goals and sub-goals.

Each year, the Strategic Planning Committee will provide a report card to summarize the progress
toward achievement of Horizon 2030 goals. Horizon 2030 was adopted in January of 2021. This report
card presents available baseline data for academic year and fiscal year 2020-21. The first full year of
data from academic and fiscal year 2021-22 will be provided in the May 2023 report card.

It is important to note that this report card for academic year 2020-21 covers a period during which all
Institutions of higher education were negatively affected by the SARS-COV-2 pandemic. However,
despite challenges caused by the pandemic, Athens State University outperformed the national average
for several enroliment metrics. These data are presented under Horizon 2030 goal 3. With the end of
the public health emergency, Athens State finds itself in a great position, and we are confident that next
year’s report card will reflect a resilient, innovative, growing institution.

1. Athens State University will offer relevant, viable, innovative, and high-quality academic programs
for lifelong learning including degrees and credit- and non-credit-bearing certificate and badge
programs at the baccalaureate, graduate, and post-college continuing education levels.

Programs will be relevant to the needs of employers and the interests of our diverse student body.
Labor market analytics

In Fall 2020, ATSU adopted the Emsi Burning Glass Analyst tool {Analyst). Analyst pulls data
from multiple sources, including the Bureau of Labor Statistics and multiple job posting
websites, to provide real-time labor market information. For each new academic program
proposed during the 2020-21 academic year, Analyst was utilized to identify employer-sought
skills and occupational growth projections.

Advisory board feedback

The College of Business and College of Education continue to engage their respective Board of
Visitors and request feedback on both existing and proposed academic programs.

Programs will be innovative in that few neighboring universities offer the programs or they are
uniquely designed.

Program review: Completions to regional job postings ratios

Using Analyst, new program proposals were reviewed to ensure that the completions to
avalilable job ratio was 4:1 or better.
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Competitive landscape analysis using Emsi or IPEDS data

Analyst data were reviewed to ensure that there is minimal competition in the State of Alabama
for any new programs.

2. Athens State University will provide quality teaching and engaged learning in modalities that
respect student preferences regarding time (schedule and degree of synchronicity) and place (on-
ground location at the ACA or on the Athens campus vs. online vs. blended).

Programs will be high-quality in that internal assessment and program reviews show student learning
outcomes are heing achieved, and external bodies accredit and/or rank programs where available.

Annual AARs

During the 2020-21 academic year, all academic programs submitted student learning
assessment data. For any outcomes that were not met, programs were asked to formulate
action plans. During the 2022-2023 academic year, the Executive Assessment Committee will
propose a revision to the Institutional Outcomes Assessment Policy that will encourage each
academic program to identify one enhancement plan annually regardless of whether targets
were met or not met.

Number of programs that are ranked
Three programs in the College of Business received rankings by new organizations: The BS in

Accounting, the BS in management, and the MS in Global Logistics and Supply Chain
Management.

Quality teaching will meet high standards as defined by faculty, but reflecting national authorities,
such as Quality Matters in the online field.
Number of QM-certified courses

Eight courses received Quality Matters certification during the 2020-21 academic year. This well
exceeded the minimum threshold of two courses per year.

Teaching effectiveness questions: Faculty Course Evaluations

Question 2, instructor’s teaching effectiveness: The target score of 4.35 out of 5 possible points
was met.

Question 18, overall satisfaction with the instructor: The result of 4.42 slightly exceeded the
target of4.41 (on a five-point scale).
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Engaged learning will be a hallmark of the University, occurring through active learning in the virtual

or on-ground classroom, and experiential learning in or out of the classroom, such as defined by the
QEP.

Programs that offer at least one EL Option

Experiential learning (EL) is the focus of the university’s current Quality Enhancement Plan
(QEP). 97.2% of degree programs reported that they offer students at least one EL opportunity,
which is well above the QEP’s minimum threshold of 90%.

In future years, students will be asked to report how well their class materials apply to
experiential learning activities and how well the EL activities foster engagement with diverse
communities and real-world challenges. Instructors will also evaluate students for appropriate
knowledge, skills, and dispositions via standardized rubrics.

3. Athens State University will recruit, retain, and graduate a growing high-quality, diverse and
successful student body.

Growth implies offsetting the forthcoming demographic cliff.
Undergraduate-level enroliment

Athens State weathered the Covid-19 crisis quite well with regard to enrollment. According to
the National Student Clearinghouse Research Center, undergraduate enroliment across the
nation in Fall 2020 dropped by 3.6% compared to the previous year; Athens State saw a lesser
decrease of3.2%.

In Spring 2021, ATSU outperformed the national trend to an even largerdegree: National
undergraduate enrollment decreased 4.9% year-over-year; however, the university recorded a
decline of only 2.1%.

Graduate-level enroliment

According to the National Student Clearinghouse Research Center, graduate student enroliment
increased in both Fall 2020 and Spring 2021 across the United States. Athens State
outperformed the national trends in both semesters. The Fall 2020 national increase was 3.6%;
ATSU's increase was 7.2%. The Spring 2021 nationalincrease was 4.6%; ATSU’s increase was
12.9%. This increase can likely be attributed to the high-demand graduate programs that were
added to Athens State University’s portfolio.

Diversity encompasses all indicators of difference--race/ethnicity, gender, disability, age, sexual
orientation, veteran status, etc.

With the Horizon 2030 strategic plan, Athens State University made a conscious decision to
strive to make student body demographics more closely resemble the demographic composition
of the communities that the institution serves. Aspirational enrollment targets were identified,
which the university hopes to achieve by the year 2030. Fall 2020 data indicate that ATSU is on
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the right path to diversifying its student body. The minimum acceptable threshold for African-
American student enrollment was 13.9%, and the university reached 14.5%. The minimum
acceptable threshold for Hispanic student enrollment was 2.6%; the actual number was 3.6%.

Success means academic achievement and employment or advancement with closing gaps between
sub-populations of degree seeking students.

Retention and persistence

To help ensure stable enrollments, Athens State has prioritized increasing fall-to-fall retention
and fall-to-spring persistence rates. Through Title Ill-funded and other initiatives, the university
exceeded its goals for year 1 (78.4% vs. 71.6%) and year 3 (36.2% vs. 32.3%) retention rates.
The fall-to-spring persistence rate of 82.9% also exceeded the goal of 81.0%

Eight-year graduation rate (IPEDS Outcome Measure)

ATSU’s accrediting body, SACSCOC, requires that each accredited institution select a key student
completion indicator (KSCI) to measure undergraduate students’ progress toward degree
completion across cohorts. Because more than 50% of Athens State students enroll on a part-
time basis, the most appropriate KSCI was the IPEDS Outcome Measure, which is a 200% (eight-

year) completion rate.

The IPEDS Outcome Measure data are disaggregated by full-time and part-time status as well as
for Pell and Non-Pell recipients. As depicted below, according to data provided by the National
Center for Educational Statistics, Athens State University exceeded its minimum acceptable
threshold for each student category. The minimum threshold was set by the Executive
Assessment Committee as no more than two points below the three-year weighted average rate

for our peer institutions.

Minimum Threshold Fall 2020 Actual Result
FT Pell: 45% 59.3% Met
FT Non-Pell: 54% 65.0% Met
PT Pell: 36% 50.2% Met
PT Non-Pell: 38% 52.1% Met

Undergraduate alumni one-year employment rate (Alabama Department of Labor EOR)

Undergraduate alumni employment and graduate school attendance rates are additional

indicators of academic achievement and institutional success.

Every other year, the Alabama Department of Labor publishes the Employment Outcomes
Report (EOR). This report offers an in-depth look at alumni from Alabama public universities
who are gainfully employed in the State of Alabama. The minimum employment threshold that
ATSU set for its alumni one year after graduation is 75%, which is the national average for
individuals who have a bachelor’s degree. According to the EOR report, the actual rate for

Athens State was 79.3%.
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Every other year, Athens State University administers the Graduate Follow-Up Survey (GFS). The
GFS asks alumni to report their employment status and graduate school attendance or
completion status. The minimum threshold for graduate school attendance or employment is
74.8%; the actual rate reported by alumni during the 2020-21 academic year was 95.2%.

Undergraduate alumni in-state salary rates: One-year post completion (EOR)

The Department of Labor Employment Outcomes Report also includes information on
undergraduate alumni salaries one year and five years following graduation for alumni who are
who are working in the State of Alabama and who are not self-employed. This metric is
important, as it helps to illuminate return on investment and alumni economic success. One
year after graduation, Athens State University alumni earn an average of $37,987/year, which is
$3,842 higher than the average for all Alabama four-year public institutions. Five years after
graduation, Athens State University alumni earn an average of $47,528/year, which is $139
higher than all Alabama four-year public institutions.

Professional program candidates will achieve licensure/certification.
Licensure/certification rates, by program
In academic year 2020-21, 100% of College of Education candidates achieved licensure. This is

an impressive achievement. In future years, data on RN to BSN program capstone pass rates
may also be reported.

4. Athens State University will increase the quantity, quality and diversity of resources and allocate
them efficiently on the basis of ROI to support the effective execution of goal-driven strategies.

Funding will increase from state appropriations, tuition revenues, donations, and grants so as to fuel
the strategic plan.

Fundraising and grants

As part of the Horizon 2030 strategic plan, Athens State University set out to diversify its
revenue streams through increased fundraising and grant awards. Data from 2020-21 show that
the institution is well on its way to achieving this objective. The current capital campaign began
in fiscal year 2016 when gifts totaled $387,875.38. In FY 2021, gifts totaled $634,657.29—a
staggering 63.6% increase. Grant funding is relatively new to Athens State, but this did not stop
the university from setting an ambitious goal of submitting $3 million in grant applications
annually. This goal was surpassed, as the FY 2021 total was $5,469,983.

Increase tuition and fee revenue through the addition of new programs and third-party partnerships
and the implementation of new badges and certificates.
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New programs

In addition to external fundraising, diversifying and expanding the academic program portfolio
can support the financial strength of the institution by increasing tuition and fee revenue. In
academic year 2020-21, Athens State University received approval from ACHE to offer four new
bachelor’s degree programs, three new master’s degree programs, and nine new certificate
programs. All of these programs were designed to meet public and private sector demand—
both locally and nationally. Below is an inventory of these new programs.

Level Program Name

BFA ART

BS EDUCATION IN ELEM ED AND ENGLISH FOR SPEAKERS OF
OTHER LANGUAGES K6

BS HOMELAND AND CORPORATE SECURITY

BSN NURSING

MS STRATEGIC HEALTHCARE MANAGEMENT AND
ADMINISTRATION

MS STRATEGIC HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

MS STRATEGIC LEADERSHIP AND BUSINESS ANALYTICS

Certificate Biblical Studies

Certificate Forensic Accounting

Certificate Government Contract Accounting

Certificate Interactive Design

Certificate Pastoral Leadership

Certificate Pre-Health

Certificate Global Logistics and Supply Chain Management (Graduate)

Certificate Strategic Business Analytics (Graduate)

Certificate Strategic Leadership (Graduate)

Human resources will be sufficient to achieve the university's goals, will engage in professional
development, and be satisfied with their peer and supervisory relationships at work.

Compensation and benefits review

Athens State University seeks to attract and retain talented faculty and staff members. Each
year, compensation and benefits are reviewed to ensure that benefits packages are competitive
and meet the needs of our valuable employees. This analysis was completed in 2020-21, and
benefits were determined to be sufficient.

The College and University Professional Association for Human Resources (CUPA-HR) is an
organization that assists institutions to achieve excellence in HR matters. AthensState holds
membership in this organization and purchases CUPA-HR data to review employee salaries
every three years. A salary review was conducted in 2020-21 and will be repeated in 2023-24.
The university’s goal is to adjust 100% of employees to a minimum benchmark identified
through CUPA analysis, and this should be achieved in Fall 2022.





Page 94 of 147

Professional development offerings

Employees thrive when they feel that their employer invests in their development. To this end,
Athens State University aims to offer its employees at least three professional development
activities annually. The university exceeded this target: 19 opportunities were offered during
the 2020-21 academic year.

Develop resources to build/implement/maintain and support a robust technology infrastructure and
associated services.

User satisfaction

Information Technology Services strives to serve all campus stakeholders well. To gather
feedback from faculty, staff, and students, a user satisfaction survey is distributed to all
individuals who request service from ITS. The minimum acceptable threshold is that 85% of
users will rate ITS' services as “good.” The actual result from academic year 2020-21 was 98.7%.

Annual IT projects

Redundancy: ITS seeks to complete 90% of high-priority IT tasks related to redundancy. In 2020-
21, one high-priority task was identified and it was successfully resolved.

Security: ITS seeks to complete 90% of high-priority tasks related to security. Two tasks were
identified as high-priority in 2020-21, and these tasks were completed. Additionally, two low-
priority projects were completed.

Access/interface: ITS seeks to complete 90% of high priority tasks related to access and user
interface quality. Eight tasks were identified as high-priority in 2020-21, and all of these projects
were completed.

Ensure required systems up-time
Networks and data serve as the backbone of campus operations. To ensure that the university
can effectively function, minimum levels of service up-time must be maintained. In academic
2020-21, goals for network, ERP (Banner), LMS (Blackboard), and telephone up-time were met

or exceeded. Details are provided below.

Network service uptime log

Minimum Threshold AY 2020-2021 Actual Result
99.96% uptime 100.0% Met

ERP uptime service log





Page 95 of 147

Minimum Threshold AY 2020-2021 Actual Result

99.96% uptime 100.0% Met
LMS uptime service log

Minimum Threshold AY 2020-2021 Actual Result

99.996% uptime 99,96% Met
Telephone uptime service log

Minimum Threshold AY 2020-2021 Actual Result

99.96% uptime 99.96% Met

5. Athens State University will engage with its outside communities as an "anchor institution"
resulting in reciprocal benefits.

Economic development will occur through university-sponsored education and participation in
community efforts such as to establish an incubator and to attract additional businesses.

Athens LaunchBox

The Athens LaunchBox will serve the community as a business development hub and community
co-working space. Grant funding was secured and will begin to be disbursed in May 2022.
LaunchBox data will be presented in future years to highlight Athens State’s role in business
attraction, creation, and support.

Economic impact

During the 2020-21 academic year, Athens State University partnered with Emsi Burning Glass to
complete an Economic Impact Study that showcases the role that the university plays in
positively impacting the economic wellbeing of North Alabama. The resulting report portrayed a
significant impact to our region. it is estimated that Athens State University operations
spending contributes an additional $33 million annually, student spending contributes an
additional $1.3 million annually, and alumni spending contributes an additional $165.6 million
annually to the local economy.

CLL workforce and business development programs

Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, it was challenging to facilitate in-person business development
programs. However, 20 programs were offered during the 2020-21 academic year, and this
number will increase in future years.
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The quality of life, including arts and culture, health, and the environment, will be enhanced through
increased programming especially at the ACA, and outreach by internal stakeholders.

Even in the face of SARS-COV-2 challenges, Athens State University successfully utilized the
Alabama Center for the Arts (ACA) to enhance the quality of life in the Athens-Decatur region.
During academic year 2020-2021, 30 events were held at the ACA. The goal is to reach 100 ACA
events per year that are either sponsored or co-sponsored by Athens State University.

Athens-ACA community partnerships also serve a vital role in enhancing quality of life in the
communities we serve. During the 2020-21 academic year, nine new community partnerships
were created. The university aspires to increase the total number of partnerships to 25 in the
future.

Communities, especially the non-profit sector, will be supported through volunteerism, service
learning, and capacity-building.

Carnegie engaged-campus activities, both learning- and public-service focused

Carnegie Community Engagement Classification testifies to an institution’s commitment to
community engagement and involvement. Athens State University aims to receive this
classification in the future. To assist in the application process, campus stakeholders are asked
to log community engagement activities in a tool called Collaboratory. For academic year 2020-
21, 13 activities were logged in the system. Organizing this number of activities in the midst of a
pandemic was no easy feat: Many community organizations closed their doors to volunteers
when community transmission rates were high. The university looks forward to reporting
growth in the number and scope of community engagements in future years.
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ATHENS STATE UNIVERSITY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

RECOMMENDATION FOR ACTION

DATE OF BOARD MEETING: May 20,2022
ACTIONITEM TITLE: Presidential 3609 Evaluation Process
RECOMMENDATION:

[tis recommended that the Athens State University Board of Trustees contract with
AASCU Consulting for the purpose of conducting an evaluation of the President of the
University using the attached process.

FISCAL CONSIDERATION: $18,500

RATIONALE:

Per Section 6.2 of the President’s employment contract:

Beginning in 2022 and continuing for every third year of the term thereafter, the Board
shall provide for an external performance evaluation of Way to generally coincide with the
regular (yerformance evaluation.

\ et = \,‘7/%'

Macke M\ét\fldin, Chair pro tempore Dat¥
L e e —
Missy Ming Smith, Vice Chair pro tempore Date
e L e e : SRS
Philip Way, President of Athens State University Date
%u@ Kooch 05 [20)2027..

]aclgie Gooch, Secretary to the Board of Trustees Date
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American Association
of State Colleges and
Universities

Delivering America’s Promise

AASCU CONSULTING

Athens State University

Comprehensive Presidential Review
March 16, 2022

BAFO

We consult and advise university leaders to help their institutions 7#2#1V€.

AASCU CONSULTING
1717 Rhode Island Avenue NW, Suite 700
Washington D.C. 20036

aascu.consulting@aascu.org





AASCU

Presidential Review Process

The AASCU Consulting model for presidential evaluation has been used for over forty years. It has proven
invaluable to presidents and boards interested in improving presidential and institutional performance. The
model consists of three main components. First, information gathering from a wide variety of sources and
stakeholders. Second, in depth interviews with key individuals and focus groups with key stakeholders selected
at random where possible. Finally, a detailed written report with findings and recommendations. In some cases,
a system may have a survey instrument that must be part of the evaluation process, or AASCU offers a survey
instrument that can be used. In that case, the consultant will work with the system to integrate the survey
information into the overall process. The survey results will be used by the consultant to form general
perceptions and provide input into the formulation of questions to be used in interviews and focus groups.

AASCU Consulting can tailor its process to align with the institution’s policy or any established procedures for
Presidential review.

Guiding Principles

« The Presidential Review will be constructive, thorough, and fair.

« While open and broad-based, the process will be mindful that this is a personnel matter and deserves
careful, considerate treatment and professional behavior in demeanor and intent.

« Thereview will focus on the patterns of perceptions rather than individual views.

« Participants in the review process will be asked to be open and will be informed that all comments will be
kept confidential, and that no individual attribution of comments will be given in the report or in oral
summaries by the consultant serving as Facilitator.

e The review will be conducted in compliance with prevailing Board and institution regulations and policies
relative to maintaining the appropriate confidentiality, anonymity, openness and communication of the
review process and its findings

Criteria
The review process will address a variety of performance core criteria, including:

« Leadership qualities

« Effectiveness in forming and carrying out of institutional mission, goals and priorities

« Communication skills

« Collegiality and collaboration
Additional, more detailed, criteria are often included in reviews after consultation with the President and Board.
They can include:

« Performance on charges conveyed to the President when he accepted the appointment
« Effective use of resources toward achieving the institution’s mission, goals, and priorities
« Creating a solid senior and campus leadership team

« Effectiveness in pursuit of diversity, equity, and inclusion

* Adherence to policies of Board and/or System

« Effectiveness in representing the institution to external stakeholders

www.aascuconsulting.org





e Ability to deal with crises and personal criticism

e Sensitivity and alertness to early warning signs to prevent crises

¢ Inclusion of appropriate stakeholders to participate and to have their views and values considered

« Ability to be a “rational authority,” stating clear reasons for decisions

e Ability to be both an advocate for those within one’s purview, and a leader-manager of them - to
encourage, lead, empower, and monitor quality; and cause quality to be enhanced.

Approach

The performance assessment will include a review of selected documents; the perceptions of individuals through

interviews during a campus visit; and input in writing from those not able to make it to one of the meetings or
not on the list.

A. Documents:

1. The Catalog

2, Organization chart

3. Fact Book

4. Packet of PR materials developed for prospective students, donors and public
5 President/University’s Annual Report

6. Recent issues of the campus newspaper

7 Recent Board meeting minutes

8. President's CV

9. Any agreement on presidential expectations, goals, or priorities

10. Prior-year annual goals and expectations

1. Prior performance reviews

12, Current Strategic Plan

13 Most recent Accreditation report and recommendations by the accreditation team

14. Summary of the budget, with major revenue and expense categories
15. Most recent audit report, including related management letters

16. Any other items that are considered helpful to the review process

B. Meetings:

Many of the perceptions will be gathered in face-to-face meetings with selected individuals. Face-to-face
meetings will complement written comments because they provide for richer discussion and allow follow-up
questions when answers warrant greater exploration. The questions posed in the meetings can vary depend on
the campus and circumstances.

T President of the University
a. This meeting will preceded by a self-assessment done by the President in
response to a set of key questions.

2. Governing board (all or a selected subset)

3. Individuals on the Main Campus
a. Direct reports to the President
. Deans
. Directors
. Assistant/Associate Vice Presidents
. Department Chairs
Representatives of the faculty, e.g., Faculty Senate

www.aascuconsulting.org
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g. Representatives of professional staff, e.g., Administrative Council
h. Representatives of classified staff, e.g. Staff Council

i. Students, e.g., Officers of the Student Government Association

j. Representatives of the Foundation

k. Representatives of the Alumni Association

4, Individuals in the University area and related communities

a. Community Leaders
b. Elected officials

C. Written Input:

Member of the campus community will be given the opportunity to send written comments to the Facilitator
about the President’s performance. As mentioned in the guiding principles, individuals are assured that all
comments will remain confidential. All e-mails and letters must identify the writer. Anonymous communications
will not be taken into consideration.

www.aascuconsulting.org





Campus Visit

The Performance review will take one day for travel; two days for on-campus meetings including sharing the
preliminary report with the President and others involved in the process.

DayOne: TravelDay for Facilitator
Campus Tour
Dinner with the Evaluation Committee and Other Trustees if Desired

Day Two: On Campus
Meeting with President

Meetings with Campus Constituencies
Potential Phone Calls with Constituents Who Cannot Come to Campus

Day Three: On Campus
Meetings with Campus Constituencies
Meeting with Community Constituencies
Meeting with Trustees (Evaluation Committee) to Review Findings
Meeting with the President to Review Findings and Offer Recommendations
Departure

Final Report

1. Immediately following the on-campus visit, the Facilitator will write the final report. The final report
will be a comprehensive document that describes the context; the methodology used in the review;
the findings; and recommendations regarding the performance and effectiveness of the President.

2. The Facilitator will provide guidance on the communicating the results of the review to the campus
and external communities, as appropriate and necessary in accordance with university custom and
guidelines.

Scope of Work
Identi i f Participan

AASCU Consulting elicits the perceptions of diverse samples of major stakeholder groups, and probe responses
to carefully considered questions. We confer with appropriate constituencies, all of whom have an interest in the
welfare of the institution

Several interviewees with whom we seek to interact will be selected at random. This means they will be selected
by using the institution's Directory and a Table of Random Numbers.

Information Gathering

Information will be gathered through a variety of sources in preparation for the on-site evaluation, For example,
the consultant will review presidential self-evaluations, presidential evaluations by the system or board, strategic
and operational plans, campus data on diversity, budgets, presidential speeches, campus publications, system
and campus dashboard information and minutes of governing boards.

www.aascuconsulting.org
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Meeting with Individual being evaluated

in our protocol, a phone or video conference is scheduled prior to the campus visit. The self-assessment may be
discussed, the process of the evaluation and any other information the individual merits important to the
evaluation. Anin-person meeting between the individual being evaluated and the consultant takes place
following the on-campus interviews, prior to the consultant’s departure.

Analysis and Report

Following the campus visit, the consultant will develop a detailed written report of findings concerning the
president's performance. The report will describe the background, information sources consulted, the process
followed, a schedule of the campus visit and a listing by title or group of persons interviewed. The report will
identify major accomplishments of the president, their strengths, and opportunities for improvement. Findings
and recommendations will be provided.

Plan to Implement Findings and Recommendations

The consultant will identify, where possible, a timeframe for implementation of recommendations. In addition,
the consultant may recommend mentoring or coaching to assist the president going forward.

Presentation of Report

The report will be reviewed with the individual being interviewed. The final report can be presented in person, by
phone or video conference as requested. An in-person presentation of the reportwould require a second visit.

www.aascuconsulting.org
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Proposed Fees

AASCU Consulting is pleased to offer Athens State University a discounted fee of $18,500, which is a further
discount to the AASCU institution member rates.

Comprehensive Presidential Review $18,500

We will be available for routine questions and brief consultations at no additional charge, a welcome investment
in your success.

Fees do not include travel and direct expenses. Expenses include travel related costs (airfare; auto rental, if
needed; parking; lodging; meals), communication, photocopies, etc.

www.aascuconsulting.org
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References

South Dakota Board of Regents

Contact Name: Kayla Bastian, System Director of Human Resources

Phone Number: 605-773-3455
Email: kayla.bastian@sdbor.edu

Ongoing. AASCU Consulting was awarded an exclusive contract
with SD Board of Regents through a competitive bid process

Arkansas State : z kayla.bastian@sdbor.edu

Contact Pam Kail, Exec. Assistant to President Arkansas State University System
Name:
Phone (870) 933-7903
Number:
Email: pkail@asusystem.edu
March 2019. 360 Evaluation per the AASCU Consulting Protocol

: University of North Carolina System

Contact Name: Lynn Duffy, Sr. Assaociate Vice President Leadership Development

Phone Number:

Email: |duffy@northcarolina.edu

August 2018. 360 evaluation of campus Chancellor per AASCU
Consulting Protocol in combination with the UNC established
process criteria

www.aascuconsulting.org





About AASCU Consulting

AASCU Consulting was established in 2014 by the American Association of State Colleges and Universities
(AASCU) to support institutional leaders in managing the broad range of strategic and organizational challenges
and promises of American higher education. One of higher education’s most credible research and consultation
firms, AASCU Consulting is known and admired for the experience and competence of its consultants, the quality
of its services to its many clients and the integrity of its work. Almost all of its work is with regional
comprehensive AASCU institutions. Through decades of experience, AASCU Consulting has developed a
consistently proven methodology for strategic planning and execution.

AASCU Consulting builds on the tradition of Penson Associates Inc., founded more than 40 years ago by Dr.
Edward M. Penson — president emeritus of Salem State University in Massachusetts and chancellor emeritus of
the University of Wisconsin-Oshkosh.

AASCU Consulting is part of the American Association for State Colleges and Universities, a 501(c)(3) corporation,
headquartered in Washington D.C. AASCU Consulting includes 13 senior consultants, 2 consultants, and 1
executive director - all successful administrators and former presidents - whose wide range of experience
collectively touches on all aspects of academia and the higher education enterprise. Consultants routinely draw
upon one another’s expertise to serve the needs of our clients.

What makes us different

Some additional distinctive qualifications AASCU Consulting brings to this engagement include:

Experience. AASCU Consulting’s team members are effective, experienced former presidents, chancellors, and
other senior executives of colleges and universities. We have diverse backgrounds in higher education and
professional services, giving us the ability to develop creative, individualized solutions for your institution.

Excellence. We've dedicated our careers to making colleges and universities better and want to help others do
the same. We have proven track records of success in our own careers and are actively engaged in the
advancement of higher education.

Integrity. AASCU's member colleges, universities, and systems share a learning- and teaching-centered culture,
a historic commitment to underserved student populations, and a dedication to research and creativity. We
share that commitment to advancing economic progress and cultural development in local communities.

www.aascuconsulting.org





AASCU Consulting Understands Higher Education

AASCU Consulting’s Engagement in the Higher Education Community

Consultants routinely draw upon one another’s expertise to serve the needs of an institution. In a very real
sense, when an institution engages AASCU Consulting, it gains the knowledge of all consultants. Each has areas
of expertise that the primary consultants can draw on to assist.

Because of their real world on-campus experience, all consultants have first- hand knowledge of the dynamics of
colleges and universities and are proficient at working with the many stakeholders involved in a successful
planning process.

As lifelong learners, AASCU Consulting team members are constantly engaged in higher education research as
consultants, lecturers and scholars which allow them to keep up with the latest trends and infuse best practices
into our work.

Our consultants engage in continuing professional development by offering and attending workshops at AASCU
national meetings and through a monthly video conference in which consultants present their current work to
one another.

www.aascuconsulting.org -
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ATHENS STATE UNIVERSITY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

RECOMMENDATION FOR ACTION

—

DATE OF BOARD MEETING: May 20,2022
ACTIONITEM TITLE: Depositories for University Funds
RECOMMENDATION:

Itis recommended that the Athens State University Board of Trustees approve President
Way's recommendation for the following institutions as the University’s banking and
investing partners:

Pinnacle Financial Partners
PNC Bank

UBS Financial Services
Edward Jones

FISCAL CONSIDERATION:

RATIONALE:
Pursuant to Legislative Act #2012-497 and the University’s Investments and Cash

Management policy, the Board is responsible for designating one or more depositories of
Univerdity funds.

il Cﬂ?@[‘ Lt

Macke Mauldin, Chair pro tempore Date
Missy Mjng Smith, Vice Chair pro tempore Date
K 1K W $l1]12
Phili ,\prgsi& t of Athens State University Date
[ Jadcie [Yoock 05/20)202.2-

Iackiaéooch, Secretary to the Board of Trustees Date
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ATHENS STATE UNIVERSITY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

RECOMMENDATION FOR ACTION

||
[

DATE OF BOARD MEETING: May 20,2022

ACTION ITEM TITLE: Capital Improvement:
New Maintenance Building
RECOMMENDATION:

[tis recommended that the Athens State University Board of Trustees approve expending
funds for building a new Maintenance Facility on the Athens State University Campus.

FISCAL CONSIDERATION: PSCA Funds: Approximately $3.2 million.

RATIONALE:

The University's current maintenance facility was constructed in 1983 and sits in the
front of campus as you enter from the east. The needs of the maintenance staff have
grown, and the University is planning for future growth and a possible expansion of Carter
Hall. As partofits plans to accommodate the needs of our maintenance staff and prepare
for

future growth, the University is asking the Board to approve the construction of a new
maintenance facility on the northeast side of campus.

U Az

Macke Mauldin, Chair pro tempore Date 3

Seleme

Missy[Myng S_{nith, Vice Chair pro tempore Date
Jip K Weoy §|zo (22
PhilipWay, Iyl'esid%il’ Athkns State University Date

Jaddiic Tooch 05 [20 j202.

]ackieyGoocl_l, Secretary to the Board of Trustees Date
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ATHENS STATE UNIVERSITY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

RECOMMENDATION FOR ACTION

DATE OF BOARD MEETING: May 20,2022
ACTION ITEM TITLE: New Academic Program: UG Certificate in
Bioinformatics

College of Arts and Sciences

RECOMMENDATION:

Itis recommended that the Athens State University Board of Trustees approve the
undergraduate certificate in Bioinformatics for the College of Arts and Sciences.

FISCAL CONSIDERATION: See attached.

RATIONALE: See attached.
|

Sllzz-
Macke Mauldin, Chair pro tempore Date
Missy Ming Smith, Vice Chair pro tempore p ate
\ A1l
I oam |
Philip Way, Presigént of Athens State University Date
oUue Mock/ 05/20/2022_
]ackLé Gooch, Secretary to the Board of Trustees ate
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Alabama Commission on Higher Education
Form for the Submission of Non-Degree Programs
(Undergraduate and Graduate Certificates)
Senior Institutions

Athens State University

Institution Name:

Non-Degree ProgramiCertificate Tite: Diinformatics Research Certificate

26.0101

CIP Code:

Award Level: (O Award < 1 Year O Award < 2 Years @ Award < 4 Years

QO Post-Bachelor Certificate O Post-Master Certificate

1. Please provide (attach) a Description of the Non-Degree/Certificate program.
2. Please provide (attach) a list all courses in the Non-Degree/Certificate program

Please provide (attach) a rationale for the program.

CMOJ/L/UU’/M | -]8-2022

ature of Institution's Authon@presentative Date

Provost/Vice President for Academic Affairs

Title

Athens State University

Institution

April2019/MPearson
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‘Th'is fo!'m is intended to be used as a “soft copy” to gather requisite information related to new non-degree certificate
nolificalions. For programs to be included on Commission agendas from March 2022 onward, information should be
submitted through the Academic Program Review Portal (apr.ache.edu).

Alabama Commission on Higher Education

Submission of a New Non-Degree Certificate
(Part 1: Description and Rationale)

1. Institution: Athens State University
2. Date of Certificate Submission:

3. Contact Person and Title: Dr. Catherine Wehlburg, Provost/VP Academic
Affairs

Telephone: 256-233-8120
E-mail: Catherine.Wehlburg@athens.edu

4. Program |ldentification:
Award Level (Undergraduate, Graduate, Post-Master's): Undergraduate
Title: Bioinformatics Research Certificate
6-digit CIP: 26.0101

5. Program Administration and Implementation:
Name of College/ School College of Arts and Sciences

Name of Dean Dr. Stephen Spencer

Name of Department Mathematical, Computer Science and Natural Sciences

Name of Chairperson Dr. Ronnie Merritt

Proposed program implementation date: Fall, 2022
Anticipated ACHE meeting for notification: June, 2022
Other considerations for timing and approval (e.g., upcoming SACSCOC review):

Non-Degree Certificate 10/28/21 1
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6. Program Design:

Brief Description of Program and Objectives:

The purpose of this certificate is two-fold: (1) It provides current students and recent
graduates the time to to develop their research in order for presentation and publication.
(2) It provides past graduates with an opportunity to improve their skills in emerging
technologies. This certificate will train students in the most current methods for
bioinformatics research, allowing them to specialize in database mining, GIS, R, Python,
genomics, phylogenetics, molecular dynamics and modeling, and other emerging
technologies.

This certificate will train students in the most current methods for bioinformatics

research, allowing them to specialize in database mining, GIS, R, Python, genomics,
phylogenetics, molecular dynamics and modeling, and other emerging technologies.

Proposed delivery format (100% in-person, 100% online, hybrid, multiple formats):
If hybrid, what % of program will be delivered online?

If multiple formats, which ones?

Total Credit Hours required to complete the program (if range, enter minimumy). 11-12

Please identify any specialized accreditation agency that may apply to this program and
explain why your institution does or does not intend to seek specialized accreditation.

Will the curriculum require work-based or experiential learning (internship, practicum,
etc.)? If yes, please explain. Definitions and examples of different types of work-based

learning are available at https://www.alapprentice.org/.
Yes - Research

Will the program be designed to meet educational requirements licensure and/or
certification required for entry-level employment? If yes, please list license and/or
certification(s).

No

Non-Degree Certificate 10/28/21 ‘ 2
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7. Employment Occupational Alignment

Using the federal Standard Occupational Code (SOC) System, please indicate the top
three occupational codes related to post-graduation employment from the program. A

full list of SOCs can be found at hitps://www.onetcodeconnector.org/find/family/title#17.

A list of Alabama’s “In-Demand Occupations” is available at

hitps://ache.edu/lnstruction.aspx

SOC 1 19-1029.01
SOC 2 (optional)
SOC 3 (optional)

8. Relationship to other programs within the institution:

Is the proposed program associated with anyexisting offerings, including options within
current degree programs? If yes, please explain. If this is a graduate program, please
list any existing undergraduate programs which are directly or indirectly related. If this is
a doctoral program, also list related master's programs.

No - this is only a certificate, does not compete.

Non-Degree Certificate 10/28/21
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Submission of a New Non-Degree Certificate (Part 2: Course Information)

Please complete the table below indicating all coursework for the proposed program,
specifying any new courses developed for the program, along with courses associated
with each option as applicable. Include the course number, and number of credits.
Coursework listed should total the number of hours required to complete the program.

Course Number and Tite Number of *
Credit Hours | _IfNew
Course
| GS 464-Directed Study/Research in General Science 4
| GS 450 ~ Research Seminar 4 .
One of the following:
CS 305 - Concepts of Computer Programming 3
[~ ITE 315 - Scripting Languages and System Administration | 3
BI 312/ — Blostatistics with Lab 4
HWM 401 — Measurement and Evaluation 3
[ Total 11-12

Intended program duration in semésters for full-time students: One semester

Intended program duration in semesters for part-time students: Two ~ three semesters

Describe any other special admissions or curricular requirements for the program:

Nen-Degree Cerlificate 10/28/21 4
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— Non-Degree Program (Certificate) Information Summary Form
T- After approval by the Curriculum Committee and the Provost, these programs require
ATl!i ENS submission to the Athens State University Board of Trustees for approval, then submitted to
S ACHE as an information item. Implementation of the program can only occur after
TATE presentation at ACHE meeting.

For your convenience, this form can be used for submission to Curriculum Committee,
Prouosl/UPAA Board of Trustee approval, and to the Alabama Commission on Higher Education

_rs_i.ﬁ.@,t.gﬁm:ogram TR e oy A s ASS O CIat e CIPY CO & ot
26.0101

The purpose of this certiﬁcate is two-foid: (1) It provides current students and recent graduates the time to
to develop their research in order for presentation and publication. (2) It provides past graduates with an
opportunity to improve their skills in emerging technologles. This certificate will train students In the most
current methods for bioinformatics research, allowing them to specialize in database mining, GIS, R, Python,

genomxcs, phvlogenetucs, molecular dynamlcs and modelmg, and other emerging technologies.

We expect 1-5 students per year to comp!

{__(?"‘“ kf‘: = ,;‘r\\:_g‘”,tlﬁ‘;&»:’:eg & <r .;,.. 3::%? M&Lm‘.
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This certificate will train students in the most
current methods for bioinformatics research,
allowing them to specialize in database mining, GIS,
R, Python, genomics, phylogenetics, molecular
dynamics and modeling, and other emerging
technologies.

L D S ST

cctirsesj’"”" liFadin Ltfl rd’é”féﬁ’.}f{aﬁw O R ANy

| S B P e A R A S COIr S e D B S G PO N e e Slo- el SemesterHours .
GS 464 Directed Studv/Research in General Science - These courses will be | 4
offered on occasion of student demand or need. May be repeated
for credit.

GS 450 Research Seminar — This course will be offered on occasion of 4
student demand or need. It affords a student the opportunity to
develop and present and/or publish the results of research
it e ‘”|eE|ect1‘v'é’,'|'r‘{f§_"”"t'ii‘:T1 R
: Q* i SRR 6?'“' m\z«'.-u’.:%z..: iF

%@i@%ﬁ”%

,sﬁcﬁ'ﬂ S 5 reﬂx'i’“a‘""%

rSEPre SERARRRE IR A courséDeseriptionEi & Sl
CS 305 Concepts of Computer Programming = This course is offered for 3

those incoming students who have not taken programming courses
to fulfill their pre-professional requirements and to fulfill the
prerequisite for CS 317. This course will introduce the fundamental
techniques of programming as a foundation for more advanced
study of computer science. Considerable attention is devoted to |
Hooks/AA - March, 2015
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developing effective software engineering practice, emphasizing
such principles as design, decomposition, encapsulation, procedural
abstraction, testing, and software reuse. Topics include standard
programming constructs, problem-solving strategies, the concept of
an algorithm, and fundamental data structures (strings, arrays, and
records) along with an introduction to machine representation, and

graphics.

ITE315

Scripting Languages and System Administration — This course is an
in-depth study of the design of scripting languages and their
applications. Scripting languages can be used to manipulate text
and data using subtle and complex coding to automate many tasks.
Students will learn to write simple scripts to automate system
administration tasks using appropriate languages. This course
explores the nature of scripting, the role of scripting languages,
explores some of the popular scripting languages and their
applications, and provides skills in scripting language design.

BI312/L

Blostatistics with Lab — This course will explore the collection and
analysis of blological data. Topics will include sampling regimes,
data organization and visualization, descriptive statlstics, statistical
tests associated with four primary experimental designs within
biology: ANOVA, linear regressions, chi-squared analysis and logistic
regression. This course will also address non-parametric
approaches to data analysis. Students will visualize and analyze
data using R statistical programming language and complete an
experiment using one of the experimental designs discussed in
class.

HWM 401

Measurement and Evaluation —This course Is designed for the
purpose of providing Health Science, Physical Education, Health and
Wellness Management, and Public Safety and Health
Administration majors with opportunities to increase their
knowledge and understanding of techniques utilized to administer,
score, and analyze the results of health science, health and safety
administration, human performance, and physical education tests.
A number of topics will be considered, including basic statistical
concepts, techniques utilized in test administration, techniques

11-12

utilized In data collection, and techniques utilized in data analysis.

Hooks/AA - M2rch, 2015
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ATHENS STATE UNIVERSITY

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

RECOMMENDATION FOR ACTION

New Academic Program: GR Certificate in

DATE OF BOARD MEETING: May 20,2022
ACTION ITEM TITLE:
Accountancy
College of Business
RECOMMENDATION:

Itis recommended that the Athens State University Board of Trustees approve the
graduate certificate in Accountancy for the College of Business.

FISCAL CONSIDERATION: See attached.

RATIONALE: See attached.

|

-

ﬁ 21—

Macke Mauldin, Chair pro tempore

Date

MSmlth Vice Chair pro tempore

SDZzo/zz

Philj y,\i’resnd%f\the\]s State University Date
aUiw ochJ 05 [20]2022
[
]ackielﬁooch, Secretary to the Board of Trustees Date '
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Y=’  Alabama Commission on Higher Education
Form for the Submission of Non-Degree Programs
(Undergraduate and Graduate Certificates)
Senior Institutions

Athens State University

Institution Name:

Naon-Degree Program/Certificate Title: Graduate Certificate of Accountancy

CIP Code: 5230 1

Award Level: (O Award <1 Year O Award < 2 Years OAward <4 Years
@) Post-Bachelor Certificate O Post-Master Certificate

1. Please provide (attach) a Description of the Non-Degree/Certificate program.

2: Please provide (attach) a list all courses in the Non-Degree/Certificate program

3. Please provide (attach) a rationale for the program.

(i ‘D‘“"g)

Signature of Institution’s Authorized Representative Date

Provost/Vice President for Academic Affairs

Title

Athens State University

Institution

April2019/MPearson
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@ Non-Degree Program (Certificate) Information Summary Form
= After approval by the Curriculum Committee and the Provost, these programs require

ATHENS submission to the Athens State University Board of Trustees for approval, then submitted to
S ACHE as an information item. Implementation of the program can only occur after
TATE presentation at ACHE meeting.

For your convenience, this form can be used for submission to Curriculum Committee,
Prouost/VPAA Board of Trustee approval, and to the Alabama Commission on ngher Education.
I Non:degree;Cartificate) Program TItIe s iy ae Y ASsOCiated.CIP. Codesy st s

Graduate Certificate of Accountancy 52.0301
{Plivnose|(Objecives)andiRationale for the proaram
The purpose of the Graduate Certlﬁcate of Accountancy is to provide a flexible option for students,
particularly those with time and budget constraints or intermediate academic goals. The certificate will be
ideal for students who:
e do not wish to pursue a full graduate degree but wants to earn an advanced credential to advance
in their field;
o is preparing for professional certifications and needs the flexibility to choose the courses most
relevant to the certification(s) they are pursuing;
e needs to earn additional hours to be eligible for the Certified Public Accountant (CPA} exam in
Alabama; or
e want to earn an advanced credential that can make an immediate impact on their career while

laying the groundwork for completion of the graduate degree.
Eipecied OO mEE BT the PrOBramzL s R R R TR G Uy (R4 R
Expected outcomes include:

e Demonstrate advanced knowledge of the theory and application of accounting topics.

o Demonstrate an ability to apply analytical and critical thinking skills and problem-solving abilities.

e Apply technologies to understand complex accounting issues and apply that understanding to new
contexts.

Communicate complex accounting issues effectively.

Recognize and analyze ethical, legal, and policy issues in accounting.

The ability to select graduate accounting topics that address the individual student needs.

The ability to obtain the desired skills faster than a degree with the same resources and experienced
faculty of the degree program.

A ARSI AR vl T T B S VL T LA LB Ly

défong;%cnu h 3
ﬁ?ﬁ&i‘: Y)“L-’! !{\ A TAE g :

Hooks/AA - March, 2015
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Courses requlred in the prqgram. i

AIXE oy —

co..u

“SemesterHoirs

L O ~,

5T

CLsn U
,i":allpwe

wi“‘s‘w s "'J. Ley
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*.\CO ﬁ szuéu Pfﬁﬁx A .“

"ACC 511

Gouernment C ntract Accounting |- A graduate-level study of
government contract accounting concepts including federal government
procurement from an accounting perspective, revenue and cost
calculations for various government contract types, and calculations of

various rates used by government contractors throughout the lifecycle
of a contract.

ACC512

Government Contract Accounting Il - A graduate-level study of
government contract accounting concepts including the financial
aspects of contract administration, accounting system requirements,
government contract audits, and data analytics in government
contract accounting.

ACC525

Accounting Information Systems - A graduate-level study of
computerized accounting information systems with an emphasis on
conceptual foundations, analytics, controls, applications, and systems
processes.

ACC540

Accounting Analytics | - A graduate-level introduction to the language
and methods of accounting analytics. Topics include descriptive
statistics, diagnostics analytics, predictive analytics, and prescriptive
analytics.

ACC551

Forensic Accounting | - A graduate-level study of forensic accounting
concepts to include the legal, regulatory, and professional
environment, perpetrators of fraud, fraud schemes, and related topics.

ACC552

Forensic Accounting Il - A graduate-level study of forensic accounting
concepts to include detection and investigative techniques and tools,
litigation, remediation, and other advanced related topics.

ACC561

Tax Research - A graduate-level course that provides hands-on practice
in tax research from identifying the issues to communicating with
clients. Emphasis will be placed on the sources of tax law, the utilization
of research tools, and their application to real-world tax issues.

ACC571

Advanced Cost Accounting - A graduate-level course that demonstrates
the practical application of advanced cost accounting concepts and how
management can use the concepts to support an organization's
strategy.

ACC620

Internal Auditing — A graduate-level course that demonstrates the
practical application of internal auditing concepts and processes. Topics
include audit standards, risk assessment, governance, ethics, and audit
techniques.

ACC 630

Financial Statement Analysis - This course includes a detailed
exploration of financial statement analysis including the tools used to

Hooks/AA - March, 2015
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analyze financial statement information, how to interpret the results,
and how to use the findings to critically evaluate financial performance
and make decisions.

ACC640

Accounting Analytics Il - This course prepares students to apply
accounting analytics tools and communicate the findings and their
relevance in decision making. Topics include audit analytics, managerial
analytics, financial statement analytics, and tax analytics.

ACC650

Current Issues and Research in Accounting - This course will include and
in-depth evaluation of major cases throughout accounting history and a
detailed analysis of current and developing issues.

ACC660

Accounting Ethics - This course will be a detalled exploration of ethical
issues In accounting, including identifying and responding to ethical
dilemmas and enhancing ethical decision-making skills in accounting.

ACC670

Corporate Controllership - This course will include a detailed
exploration of the role of the corporate controller and the major
functions typically performed and managed by the controlier in the

areas of financial and management accounting.
Total Required Hours:

Hooks/AA - March, 2015
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*This form Is Intended to be used as a "soft copy” to gather requisite infonmation related to new non-degree certificate
netifications. For programs fo be included on Commission agendas from March 2022 onward, information should ba
submitted through the Academic Program Review Portal {apr.ache,adu),

Alabama Commission on Higher Education

Submission of a New Non-Degree Certificate
(Part 1: Description and Rationale)

1. Institution: Athens State University
2. Date of Certificate Submission: April 5, 2022

3. Contact Person and Title: Dr. Catherine Wehlburg, Provost & Vice President of
Academic Affairs

Telephone: 256-233-8120
E-mail: Catherine.Wehlburg@athens.edu

4. Program |ldentification:
Award Level (Undergraduate, Graduate, Post-Master's): Graduate
Title: Graduate Certificate of Accountancy
6-digit CIP: §2.301

5. Program Administration and Implementation:
Name of College/ School: College of Business / Athens State University

Name of Dean: Gary Valcana, Interim Dean

Dr. Lionel Wright, Interim Associate Dean
Name of Department: Accounting and Statistics
Name of Chairperson: Stacie Hughes

Proposed program implementation date: Fall 2022
Anticipated ACHE meeting for notification: June 10, 2022
Other considerations for timing and approval (e.g., upcoming SACSCOC review):

Non-Dagres Certificate 10/28/21 1
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6. Program Design:
Brief Description of Program and Obijectives:

The purpose of the Graduate Certificate of Accountancy is lo provide a flexible
option for students, particularly those with time and budget constraints or
intermediate academic goals. The cerlificate will be ideal for students who:
e do not wish to pursue a full graduate degree but want to earn an advanced
credential to advance in their field;
e are preparing for professional certifications and need the flexibility to choose
the courses most relevant to the cerlification(s) they are pursuing;
e need o earn additional hours to be eligible for the Certified Public Accountant
(CPA) licensure in Alabama; or
o want to earn an advanced credential that can make an immediate impact on
their career while laying the groundwork for completion of the graduate
degree.
The program objectives include:
e Demonstrate advanced knowledge of the theory and application of accounting
lopics. :
e Demonstrate an abilily to apply analytical and critical thinking skills and
problem-solving abilities.
e Apply technologies to understand complex accounting issues and apply that
understanding to new contexts.
e Communicate complex accounling issues effectively.
e Recognize and analyze ethical, legal, and policy issues in accounting.

Proposed delivery format (100% in-person, 100% online, hybrid, multiple formats):
100% online

If hybrid, what % of program will be delivered online?

if multiple formats, which ones?

Total Credit Hours required to complete the program (if range, enter minimum): 15

Please identify any specialized accreditation agency that may apply to this program and
explain why your institution does or does not intend to seek specialized accreditation.
N/A

Will the curriculum require work-based orexperiential learning (internship, practicum,
etc.)? If yes, please explain. Definitions and examples of different types of work-based

learning are available at hitps://www.alapprentice.org/.

The Graduate Certificate of Accountancy will incorporate expeniential learing
opportunities throughout the program’s courses. By incorporating these
opportunities throughout the courses, each experiential learning activity will focus
on the specialized knowledge taught in the individual courses. For instance, this will
allow the analytics courses lo include realistic, integrated labs and projects that
focus on the use of analytics and data modeling software, while the intemal auditing

Non-Degree Certificate 10/26/21 2





Page 125 of 147

course can include simulations and projects incorporating audit and risk-based
software. Students of the Graduate Certificate of Accountancy program will
participate in real-worid case studies, realistic, integrated labs and projects,
comprehensive cases, professional software (IDEA, Tableau, Excel, Access, elc.),
professional ethical frameworks (AICPA, IMA, llA), CPA task-based simulations,
and other experiential learning opportunities as appropniate.

Will the program be designed to meet educational requirements licensure and/or
certification required for entry-level employment? if yes, please list license and/or
certification(s).

Students who complete the Graduale Ceriificate of Accountancy program at
Athens State University will exceed the requirements for entry-level employment in
accounting. They will be able to compete successfully for advanced positions in
the accounting field.

While not required for entry-level employment, professional certifications provide
a significant competitive advantage and are essential to the field of accounting. The’
Graduate Certificate of Accountancy will assist in meeting the educational
requirements of the Certified Public Accountant (CPA) designation. The Alabama
State Board of Public Accountancy (ASBPA) requires 150 semester hours to
become a CPA in Alabama, with at least 33 semester hours in accounting (upper-
division undergraduate, graduate, or a combination). The courses within the
Graduate Certificate of Accountancy would count toward those hours, include
material that would prepare students for the CPA exam content, and incorporate
CPA task-based simulations.

The certificate program would also address knowledge needed for the Certified
Management Accountant (CMA) exam, including information systems, analytics,
intemal controls, and an in-depth study of budgeting, cost management, and
performance management. The Certified Internal Auditor (CIA) will be introduced to
students through courses in the program. CIA exam content will be taught, and
retired CIA exam questions will be used in the program.

7. Employment Occupational Alignment
Using the federal Standard Occupational Code (SOC) System, please indicate the top
three occupational codes related to post-graduation employment from the program. A

full list of SOCs can be found at https://www.onetcodeconnector.oraffindfamilyAtitle#17.

A list of Alabama's “In-Demand Occupations” is available at

hitps://ache.edu/Instruction.aspx

SOC 1 (required). 13-2011 Accountants and Auditors
SOC 2 (optional): 13-0000 Business and Financial Operations Occupations
SOC 3 (optional): 73-2000 Financial Specialists

8. Relationship to other programs within the institution:

Is the proposed program associated with anyexisting offerings, including options within
current degree programs? If yes, please explain. If this is a graduate program, please

Non-Degree Cettificate 10/28/21 3
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list any existing undergraduate programs which are directly or indirectly related. If this is
a doctoral program, also list related master's programs.

The Graduate Certificate of Accountancy is related to the Bachelor of Science in
Accounting undergraduate program and the Master of Accountancy graduate
program. In addition fo the purposes listed previously, this certificate can serve as a
bridge befween the undergraduate and graduate programs. It will include content not
covered at the undergraduate level and some courses could apply toward program
requirements for the Master of Accountancy.

Submission of a New Non-Degree Certificate (Part 2: Course Information)

Please complete the table below indicating all coursework for the proposed program,
specifying any new courses developed for the program, along with courses associated
with each option as applicable. Include the course number, and number of credits.
Coursework listed should total the number of hours required to complete the program.

Course Number and Title Number of

x
Credit Hours if New
Course

The certificate will require the completion of 15 semester credit

kours. Those hours must be selected from the list below. 15 Total

ACC 511 Govemment Contract Accounting |
ACC 512 Govemment Contract Accounting It
ACC 525 Acoounting Information Systems
ACC 540 Accounting Analytics |
ACC 551 Forensic Accounting |
ACC 552 Forensic Accounting Il
ACC 581 Tax Research
ACC 571 Cost Accormti
ACC 620 Intemal Auditing
ACC 830 Financial Statement Analysis
ACC 840 Accounting Analytics [l
ACC 850 Curmrent Issues and Research in Au:ounﬂgg
ACC 860 Accounting Ethics
|LACC 870 Corporate Controllership

(] (2 LT ATEZ T2 (U] (L LAY (20 (A AT (A] ()

Intended program duration in semesters for full-time students: Two semesters.

intended program duration in semesters for part-ime students: Up fo five semesters.

Describe any other special admiséions or curricular requirements for the program: AVA

Non-Degree Certificate 10/28/21 4
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ATHENS STATE UNIVERSITY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

RECOMMENDATION FOR ACTION

DATE OF BOARD MEETING: May 20, 2022

ACTION ITEM TITLE: New Academic Program: Master of Science in
Acquisition and Contract Management
College of Business
RECOMMENDATION:
It is recommended that the Athens State University Board of Trustees approve the Master
of Science degree in Acquisition and Contract Management for the College of Business.

FISCAL CONSIDERATION: See attached.

RATIODNALE: See attached.

F\ ol zz-

Macke Mauldin, Chair pro tempore Date

Missy|Ming Smith, Vice Chair pro tempore Date
L K. o S {?o [1
PW% F’resigeﬁ of Athens State University Date

a U /qooch 05]20 /2025
]ackingooch, Secretary to the Board of Trustees Date
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*This form is intended to be used as a “soft copy” to gather requisite information related to new degree pragram
applications. For programs to be included on Commission agendas from March 2022 onward, applications should be
submitted through the Academic Program Review Portal (apr.ache.edu).

Alabama Commission on Higher Education

PROPOSAL FOR A NEW DEGREE PROGRAM (Part 1: Proposal)

. Date of Proposal Submission: June 1, 2022

Full program name and level: Master of Science in Acquisition and Contract
Management (ACM)

Degree nomenclature (e.g., MBA, BS): MS
CIP Code: 52.0202

. Learning Outcomes:

Succinctly list at least four (4) but no more than seven (7) of the most prominent student
learning outcomes of the program.

i. Graduates will demonstrate advanced knowledge of Acquisition and Contract
Management (ACM) concepts, techniques, practices, and processes.

ii. Graduates will demonstrate an understanding of motivational theories and
effective leadership practices across global private and government sectors
world-wide. .

iii. Graduates will have relevant technological and information-literacy skills
necessary to constantly build upon gained knowledge and experience.

iv.  Graduates will be able to communicate effectively both orally and in writing in
a global ACM setting.

v. Graduates will demonstrate the ability to make ethical decisions in a global
environment.

vi. Graduates will be able to develop and implement ACM strategies that are
sensitive to universally accepted moral and societal standards that benefit all
classes of people and the environment.

vii. Graduates will be able to apply quality management tools for process
improvement and analyze regional and global business environments to
institute ACM purchasing concepts to improve an entity's efficiency and
effectiveness.

Academic Program Proposal 10/28/21 1
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3. Employment Outcomes and Program Demand

Please describe how the proposed program prepares graduates to seek
employment in the occupations (SOC codes) identified within the NISP. Note: you
may also indicate any updates to those codes here.

The following three SOC codes were identified in the NISP:

11-3061: Purchasing Managers
13-1028: Buyers and Purchasing Agents
13-1051: Cost Estimators

This is just a sample of the industries in which graduates of the Master of
Science in Acquisition and Contract Management would seek employment.
Courses were designed and learning objectives were identified using input from
faculty experts and industry practitioners.

Please explain whether further education/ training is required for graduates of the
proposed program to gain entry-level employment in the occupations you have
selected.

Students who complete the Master of Science in Acquisition and Contract
Management degree at Athens State University will far exceed the requirements for
entry-level employment in the above-listed occupations. They will be able to
successfully compete for advanced positions in the acquisition and contract
management field.

Briefly describe how the program fulfills a specific industry or employment need for the
State of Alabama. As appropriate, you should discuss alignment with Alabama's
Statewide or Regional Lists of In-Demand Occupations (available at
hitps://ache.edu/lnstruction.aspx under “Policy/Guidance”) or with emerging industries
as identified by Alabama'’s Innovation Commission or the Economic Development
Partnership of Alabama (EDPA).

The category “Cost Estimators” appears on the Alabama Statewide List of
Statewide In-Demand Occupations. According to this report, there are an
estimated 255 annual openings with a median salary of $55,912.

The category “Purchasing Managers” appears on the Region 1 In-Demand
Occupations list with an estimated 40 annual openings and a median salary of
$116,489.

To determine industry demand for a new academic program, Athens State
University utilizes Emsi Burning Glass Analyst software, which draws from
IPEDS and Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS) data.

Academic Program Proposal 10/28/21 2





Page 130 of 147

In the Huntsville metropolitan statistical area (MSA), no institution awarded a
master's degree in academic year 2020 in the field of purchasing,
procurement/acquisitions and contracts management (CIP Code 52.0202).
However, according to BLS data obtained through the Emsi Burning Glass
Analyst system, there are an estimated 84 annual job openings for individuals
who hold such a degree. Furthermore, the Huntsville MSA is expected to see
related occupations grow 10.3% during the ten-year period 2021-2031, which is
higher than the 9.8% expected national growth rate. Annual median mid-career
earnings for this field in the Huntsville MSA are estimated at $91,600.

0

=mononouw ounounon
: :

Source: EmsiBG Q1 2022 Data Set
Program Overview for Huntsville MSA
www.economicmodeling.com

Statewide, there are an estimated 357 annual openings for individuals who hold
a master's degree in acquisition and contract management; however, no
Alabama institution currently awards such a degree. As is the case with the
Huntsville MSA, the occupation growth rate forecast for the State of Alabama
(12.9%) exceeds the forecast growth rate for the nation (9.8%) for the period
2021-2031.
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Program Overview for State of Alabama
www.economicmodeling.com

Please describe how you will determine whether graduates are successful in obtaining
relevant employment or pursuing further study.

Each semester, the Office of Institutional Research and Assessment
administers the Graduate Program Exit Survey (GPES). This survey
gathers student-reported information on employment, changes in employer
due to degree completion, and promotions. These indicators will be used
to guide faculty and administrators in student recruiting and career
advising. The GPES is distributed electronically to all students who are
cleared for graduation.

Employment data will also be collected from Athens State University
Alumni via the Graduate Follow-Up Survey (GFS). This survey captures
data on students’ graduation year, employment status, employment sector,
annual earnings, and continuing education. The GFS is administered
every other year.

The ACM program plans to also assess employer satisfaction with program
graduates through employer surveys and needs statements. The first

Academic Program Proposal 10/28/21 4
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survey will be administered one year after the first students graduate and
once every three years thereafter.

Briefly describe evidence of student demand for the program, including enroliments in
related coursework at your institution if applicable. If a survey of student interest was
conducted, please briefly describe the survey instrument, number and percentage of
respondents, and summary of results.

Athens State University has a strong B.S. degree in Acquisition and Contract
Management. Over the past five academic years, the average enroliment
headcount was 95.6 students, and the average number of annual completers was
18. The number of completers has increased 50% from academic year 2016-17 to
academic year 2020-2021. The undergraduate ACM program will serve as a natural
source of students for the graduate ACM program.

Furthermore, additional demand for this graduate program exists among personnel
at Redstone Arsenal (RSA). Redstone Arsenal requires that personnel complete
their graduate training in an in-person educational modality. With the departure of
Florida Institute of Technology from Redstone Arsenal, which recently decided to
offer its programs in an online-only format, RSA leadership requested that Athens
State University offer an in-person MS in Acquisition and Contract Management to
meet the U.S. Army installation’s educational demand. Organizations located at
RSA include US Army Materiel Command, US Army Contracting Command, and US
Army Aviation and Missile Command.

4. Specific Rationale (Strengths) for Program

What is the specific rationale for recommending approval of this proposal? List 3-5
strengths of the proposed program.

i. RESPOND TO MARKET NEED: This program is designed to address the
growing regional, national, and worldwide demand for Acquisition & Contract
practitioners that possess the skills needed to function in a borderless
environment.

ii. DEVELOP SKILLS IN FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING CONCEPTS: This program will
develop acquisition & contract professionals who can apply critical thinking skills in
financial accounting concepts; the accounting model; measurement processes;
financial statements; the accounting cycle; monetary and fixed assets; inventory,
current and long-term liabilities; and equity structures of partnerships,
proprietorships and corporations.

iii. PROVIDE TRAINING ON FEDERAL ACQUISITION PROCESSES: The program
will prepare students to excel at procurement and contract management in the
federal acquisition process with use of basic concepts, policies and procedures
incident to government contracting through the Federal Acquisition Regulation
(FAR) and supplementing directives. Curriculum will cover principles, policies,
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concepts and procedures in management of contracts and subcontracts. includes
rules of interpretation, subcontracting terms and conditions, in-depth examination of
significant contract clauses, patent/data provisions, risk allocation and assumption,
impossibility of performance, product liability, warranties and claims.

iv. PROVIDE TRAINING IN CONTRACTS AND CONTRACT LAW: The program will
equip students with the ability to navigate contract changes, terminations and
disputes. Students will utilize case studies and lectures to examine in depth the post-
award management problems associated with contract administration. Curriculum will
cover contract changes, terminations, disputes and other ACM issues. These other
issues will include financial and accounting overviews of government acquisition
policies and procedures in accordance with the FAR. Additionally, students will utilize
class discussions and case studies to examine management problems from the
perspective of the contracting office, requiring activity, courts, Congress and
contractors; students will explore, analyze and discuss negotiation concepts and
techniques by utilizing mock negotiations.

v. PROVIDE REAL-WORLD RESEARCH EXPERIENCE: Students will be required to
develop a significant capstone research paper to demonstrate their mastery over
the complete curriculum.

Please list any external entities that have supplied letters of support attesting to the
program’s strengths, and attach letters with the proposal.

Lisha H. Adams, Executive Deputy to the Commanding General
US Amy Material Command (AMC)

Patrick W. Burden, Army and Special Operations Forces Field Marketing Director
Boeing Aerospace Company

Dr. Myra S. Gray, Deputy to the Commanding General
US Amy Security Assistance Command (USASAC)

Bryan Samson, Deputy to the Commanding General
US Army Contracting Command (ACC)

Erin Rice, HR Business Partner
Lockheed Martin Space

5. Program Resource Requirements

A. Faculty. Please provide or attach a brief summary of primary and support faculty that
includes their qualifications specific to the program proposal. Note: Institutions must
maintain and have current and additional primary and support faculty curriculum vitae
available upon ACHE request for as long as the program is active, but you do not need
to submit CVs with this proposal.

Academic Program Proposal 10/28/21 6
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Name and Rank Academic Degrees & Other Qualifications &
| _ Coursework Comments
Roberts, Chartes R Ph.D in Organization & DAU - Level Il Certification
Professor Management (Acquisition Management)
Capella University
Chief Logistics Officer, US Army
Aviation & Missile Command,
1994-2010
Support Facuity (Full-time)
Name and Rank Academic Degrees & Other Qualifications &
Coursework Comments
Corzine, Emily Master of Business MBA Concentration in
Associate Professor Administration Accounting
University of North Alabama
Primary Faculty (Part-time)
Name and Rank Academic Degrees & Other Qualifications &
Coursework Comments
Kaufman, Becky D. M.S. in Contract and
Adjunct Professor Acquisition Management
Florida Institute of Technology
Pilisbury, Michael R. J.D.
Adjunct Professor Texas Wesleyan University

School of Law—now Texas
A&M University School of Law

Salinas, William D. Master of Administrative Level lll Certification
Adjunct Professor Science (Contracting)
University of Alabama in
Huntsville
Support Faculty (Part-time)
Name and Rank Academic Degrees & Other Qualifications &
Coursework Comments

needed.

Adjunctfaculty may be employed on an “as needed” basis depending on student enroliment each term.
The University has a strong group of well-qualified adjunct faculty who are available to assist as

Acadsemic Program Proposal 10/28/21
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Please provide faculty counts for the proposed program:

Faculty Type
Status | Primary Support
Current Full-Time 1 1
Current Part-Time 3 N/A
Additional Full-Time (to be hired) | N/A N/A
Additional Part-Time (to be hired) | 7 N/A

Note: Annual compensation costs for additional faculty to be hired should be included in the
NEW ACADEMIC DEGREE PROGRAM SUMMARY table in Part 3, Salary/benefits for current faculty
should not be included.

Briefly describe the qualifications of any new faculty to be hired:
Any new faculty member hires must have a minimum of a master’s degree in acquisition

and contract management or equivalent credentials from an accredited institution of
higher education.

B. Staff. Will the program require dedicated staff? Yes « | No

If so, indicate the number or percentage of FTEs.

Note: Annual compensation costs for staff to be hired should be included in the
NEW ACADEMIC DEGREE PROGRAM SUMMARY table in Part 3.

C. Equipment. Will any special equipment be needed specifically for this program?

Yes ‘T]No

if yes, please list. Their cost should be included in the NEW ACADEMIC DEGREE PROGRAM
SUMMARY table in Part 3.

D. Facilities. Will any new facilities be required specifically for the program?
l:. Yes x_INo

If yes, please list. Only new facilities need be listed. Their cost should be included in the
NEW ACADEMIC DEGREE PROGRAM SUMMARY table in Part 3.

Academic Program Proposal 10/28/21 8
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E. Library. Will additional library resources be required to support the program?

x |Yes No

Please provide a brief description of the current status of the library collections
supporting the proposed program.

Monographs

The table below gives the number of monographic holdings for each subject
heading, and subject heading combination, relating to Acquisitions and Contract
Management for the last ten years. In all, the library's collection contains over
2,800 monographs, of which the majority are eBooks, published in the last ten
years to support these areas.

Library of Number Number of Number of
Congress of Books eBooks Print Books
Subject (Total)

Headings

Contracts 695 686 9
Contracting 205 202 3
Out

Consolidation 100 98 2
and merger of

corporations

Department of 129 129 0
Defense

Procurement

Defense 115 114 1
contracts

Government 89 88 1
contractors

Negotiation in 84 82 2
business

Public 429 425 4
contracts

Government 189 189 0
purchasing

Industrial 47 47 0
Procurement

Business 374 364 10
Logistics

Manufacturing 263 262 1
processes

Cost Control 181 181 0

Academic Program Proposal 10/28/21 9
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Library of Number Number of Number of
Congress of Books eBooks Print Books
Subject (Total)

Headings

Managerial 86 85 1
Accounting

Databases and Journals
Kares Library subscribes to several databases that will support this program. The
tables below show the number of full text articles, both peer-reviewed and
otherwise, that can be found in the field of Acquisitions and Contract
Management in both EBSCO's Business Source Premier, ProQuest's ABl/inform
and Emerald's Operation, Logistics & Quality. In addition to these journal
databases, we also provide access to O'Reilly Higher Education, which supports
this program with eBooks, videos, and tutorials.

Business Number of Number of Number of
Source Full-Text Peer Peer
Premier Journal Reviewed Reviewed
(EBSCOhost) Articles Full-Text Full-Text
(Scholarly Journal Journal
& Trade) Articles Articles
2012-2022
Procurement 171 21 12
AND “contract
management’
Termination OR 26,599 3,732 761
dispute AND
“contract
changes”
“government 136 40 5
contract® AND
law
“contract 52 26 7
negotiations”
AND incentive
“supply chain” 3,166 925 526
AND contract
“financial 1,354 679 99
accounting”
AND contract
Subcontract 1,156 318 52
Academic Program Proposal 10/28/21 10
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ABl/inform Number of Number of Number of
Collection Full-Text Peer Peer
(ProQuest) Journal Reviewed Reviewed
Articles Full-Text Full-Text
(Academic Journal Journal
& Trade) Articles Articles
2012-2022
Procurement 27,530 1,193 591
AND “contract
management”
Temination OR 1,475,848 42,839 19, 568
dispute AND
“contract
changes”
“government 28,142 1,067 423
contract” AND law
“contract 18,091 1,352 447
negotiations”
AND incentive :
“supply chain” 876,639 20,686 12,526
AND contract
“financial 193,352 5,281 2,350
accounting” AND
contract
Subcontract 89,408 3,527 1,163
Operations, Logistics, | Number of Full- | Number of Peer | Number of Peer
& Quality (Emerald) Text Journal Reviewed Full- | Reviewed Full-
Articles Text Journal Text Journal
(Academic & Articles Articles 2012-
Trade) 2022
Procurement AND 2,000+ 2,000+ 1,000+
“contract management”
Termination OR dispute | 1,000+ 1,000+ 795
AND “contract changes”
“government contract” 2,000+ 1,000+ 1,000+
AND law
“contract negotiations” 706 659 416
AND incentive
“supply chain® AND 4,000+ 4,000+ 2,000+
contract
“financial accounting” 4,000+ 4,000+ 2,000+
AND contract
Subcontract 809 777 304

Academic Program Proposal 10/26/21
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Some of the individual peer reviewed journal titles in these databases that would
be particularly useful to students in this program are listed in the table below.

Journal Title Database Dates Available
ProQuest (2005-01-01~present)
Contract management | G510 (2000-10~2005-12)
Joumal
of defense analytics and ProQuest (2018-01-01~present)
| logistics
International Journal of
Productivity and ProQuest (1992-01-01~365 days ago)
Performance Management
Joumnal of Supply Chain 01-01~
Management ProQuest (2012-01-01~365 days ago)
2012-03-01~present)
IUP Journal of Supply ProQuest ( 1~
Chain Management Ebsco (2009-09-01~present)
Logistics Management ProQuest (1998-01-01~present)
International Journal of .

. N E id 1994~present, volume:24; issue:1
Physical Distribution & P:'ggsesst 21 992-(?1 f.:‘01‘-3 336‘61'>°duays ago)I )
Logistics Management

. 1990~present, volume:1; issue:1)
Intemnational Journal of Emerald (
Logistics Management ProQuest (1998-01-01~365 days ago)
Joumnal of Global .
. . Emerald (2017~present, volume:10; issue: 1)
Operations and Strategic 0101~
Sourcing ProQuest (2008-01-01~365 days ago)
Defense Acquisition
Research Journal Gale (2018-09~present)
. ProQuest (1994-05-01~2015-11-01)

Govemment Executve | g (1996-08~2015-11)
Journal of Public
Procurement ProQuest (2001-01-01~2014-12-01)

ProQuest (2005-01-01~present)
Contract management Gale (2000-10~2005-12)
Joumal
of defense analytics and | ProQuest (2018-01-01~present)

| logistics

ProQuest (2005-02-01~present)
Government Procurement | Gale (2001-12~2012-11)

Ebsco (1998-08-01~2014-12-01)

Academic Program Proposal 10/28/21
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Borrowing Agreements with Other Libraries

Kares Library at Athens State University is a member of the Network of Alabama
Academic Libraries (NAAL) and OCLC (a worldwide resource-sharing network).
Through these consortia, Athens State students and faculty can receive specific
materials from throughout the world via interlibrary loan. Items held by libraries
in NAAL generally have an especially short turnaround time. Often, periodical
articles can be received electronically on the same day of the request.
Monographs are delivered by UPS courier service to NAAL member libraries.
Kares Library at Athens State University maintains reciprocal borrowing
agreements with many academic libraries in the area, including the University of
North Alabama and Alabama A&M University. As specified in these agreements,
Athens State students and faculty are permitted to use the resources of other

libraries and receive assistance.

If yes, please briefly describe how any deficiencies will be remedied, and include the
cost in the NEW ACADEMIC DEGREE PROGRAM SUMMARY table.

The monograph collection is sufficient to support this program, providing we
budget for new monographs in this area in future years. For the first year of the
graduate program, we propose an allocation of $1,530 for nine books. Beginning
with the second year of the program, we propose an annual allocation of $1,020
for six books. Our e-book collections, EBSCOhost and O'Reilly, regularly add
content to their collections. O’Reilly e-book collection focuses mainly on
business, computer science, and IT titles and was purchased to support those
programs. Thus, in terms of the e-book collections, we will have adequate
support for this graduate program.

Our journal collection offers a considerable selection of journals with coverage to
the present. We have listed some possible purchase options below.

Journal Annual
Cost
Journal of Contract Management $16.00
(Open
access
journal)
International Journal of Procurement Management $985.00
Journal of Strategic Contracting and Negotiation $1132.00

F. Assistantships/Fellowships. Will you offer any assistantships specifically for this

program?

Yes

Academic Program Proposal 10/28/21
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If “Yes”, how many assistantships will be offered? ]

The expenses associated with any *new* assistantships should be included in the NEW
ACADEMIC DEGREE PROGRAM SUMMARY table in Part 3.

G. Other.  Please explain any other costs to be incurred with program
implementation, including lab start-up expenses or specialized accreditation costs. Be
sure to note these on the NEW ACADEMIC DEGREE PROGRAM SUMMARY table in Part 3.

N/A

PROPOSAL FOR A NEW DEGREE PROGRAM (Part 2: Course Info)
Name of Proposed Program: M.S. in Acquisition and Contract Management

Program Completion Requirements: (Enter a credit hour value for all applicable
components, write N/A if not applicable)

Credit hours required in program courses 27
Credit hours in general education or core curriculum
Credit hours required in support courses

Credit hours in required or free electives 6
Credit hours in required research
Total credit hours required for completion 33

Maximum number of credits that can be transferred in from another institution and
applied to the program: Current University policy adheres to the SACSCOC standard
that “at least one-third of the credit hours required for a graduate degree are earned
through instruction offered by the institution awarding the degree” (Standard 9.5).

Intended program duration in semesters for full-time students: 4

Intended program duration in semesters for part-time students: 8

Does the program require students to demonstrate industry-validated skills, specifically
through an embedded industry-recognized certification, through structured work-based
learning with an employer partner, or through alignment with nationally recognized
industry standards? If yes, please explain how these components fit with the required
coursework.

No

Does the program include any options/concentrations? If yes, please give an overview
of the options, and identify the courses for each in the table below.

Academic Program Proposal 10/28/21 14
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No

Please indicate any prior education or work experience required for acceptance into the
program:
Students must satisfy the general university and College of Business
requirements for graduate programs.

Describe any other special admissions or curricular requirements for the program:
The program has no special admissions requirements.

Please complete the table below indicating all coursework for the proposed program,
identifying any new courses developed for the program, along with courses associated
with each option as applicable. Include the course number, and number of credits.
Coursework listed should total the number of hours required to complete the program.

Course Number and Title Number of

*
CreditHours If New
Course

ACC 511 Financial Accounting
ACM 500 Procurement and Contract Management
ACM 520 Advanced Procurement and Contract Management

ACM 525 Contract Changes, Terminations and Disputes
ACM 540 Govemment Contract Law

ACM 580 Cost Principles and Control

ACM 620 Contract and Sub Contract Formulation

ACM 630 Contract Negotiations and Incentive Contracts
{"ACM 695 CAPSTONE Research for Contract Management
LSM 600 Supply Chain Govemance

LSM 601 Procurement and Materials Management

wl W W W W W w w w w w
»

Academic Program Proposal 10/26/21 16





Page 143 of 147

(Part 3: Program Summary/Business Plan)

NEW ACADEMIC DEGREE PROGRAM PROPOSAL SUMMARY
INSTITUTION: Athens Slate Universily
PROGRAM: Acquisition and Contract Management f::«i?f Master's
ESTIMATED *NEW'’ EXPENSES TO IMPLEMENT PROPOSED PROGRAM

Year 1 Year 2 Year3 Year4 Year5 Year 6 Year7 TOTAL
FACULTY 18097 18097 18097 18097 18097 18087 18097 126679
STAFF 0
EQUIPMENT 0
FACILITIES 0
LIBRARY 3662 3152 3152 3152 3152 3152 3152 22574
ASSISTANTSHIPS 0
OTHER 0
TOTAL 21759 21249 21249 21249 21249 21249 21249 149253

H = UK PHRU e FPRPOR

Year1 Year 2 Year3 Year4 Year5 Year 6 Year7 TOTAL
REALLOCATIONS 0
EXTRAMURAL 0
TUITION 36000 69600 84000 84000 84000 84000 84000 525600
TOTAL 36000 63600 84000 84000 84000 84000 84000 525600

{0 FRO O

Year 1 Year2 Year 3 Year 4 Year5 Year 6 Year7 AVERAGE

Year 1 - No
FULL-TIME data 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
HEADCOUNT reporting

required

Year 1 - No
PART-TIME data 10 13 13 13 13 13 125
HEADCOUNT reporting

required

Year 1 - No
TOTAL data 13 16 16 16 16 16 155
HEADCOUNT reporting

required

Year 1 -No
NEW
ENROLLMENT | St 7 7 7 7 7 7 i
HEADCOUNT required

DEGREE COMPLETION PROJECTIONS

Note: Do not count Lead "0"s and Lead 0 years in compuling the average annual degree completions.

Year 1 Year 2 Year3 Year 4 Years Year 6 Year7 AVERAGE
Year 1 - No
DEGREE
COMPLETION ‘r’:;:m i 3 4 6 6 6 7 | 5333333333
PROJECTIONS required

Academic Program Proposal 10/28/21 16
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ATHENS STATE UNIVERSITY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

RECOMMENDATION FOR ACTION

DATE OF BOARD MEETING: May 20,2022
ACTION ITEM TITLE: 2022-2023 Tuition/Fee Schedule
RECOMMENDATION:

Itis recommended that the Athens State University Board of Trustees approve the
tuition/fee schedule for AY 2022-2023 as presented. This schedule includes a 7%
increase in undergraduate and graduate tuition rates. The 7% increase is based on the
December 2021 12-month CPL.

FISCAL CONSIDERATION: See attached.

RATIONALE:
The tuition/fee schedule is approved annually by the Board of Trustees. The AY 2022-
2023 tuition/fee schedule includes a restructure of tuition/fees to allow the University to

become{wore competitive with other regional institutions.
C‘?/\Y?cﬂﬂfv
Macke Mauldm, Chair pro tempore Date
Missy Smith, Vice Chair pro tempore Date
A K Wan S|po[22
Philip Wa Prgmde?t/f Athehs State University Date
Q/yﬁfub %0(/}’1/ 05/20/41021.

ackle Gooch, Secretary to the Board of Trustees Date





ATHENS STATE

UNIVERSITY

2022-2023 Tuition and Fee Schedule

Tuition and Fees per credit hour In State Out of State
Traditional Tuition — Undergraduate $241 $482
Traditional Tuition — Graduate 348 603
Non-Traditional Rate — Undergraduate 241 241
Non-Traditional Rate — Graduate 348 348
Technology Fee per Credit Hour 75 75
Bond Surety Fee per Credit Hour 1 1
Student Activities Fee 1

Other Student Fees
Application/Transfer Fee 30 30
Late Fee* 35 35
Lab Fee (as specified per course) 53 33
Auditing Fee per hour 2 of applicable tuition rate | % of applicable tuition rate
Teaching Internship Fee 200 200
edTPA Fee 300 300
Credentials Fee** maximum of $100/course | maximum of $100/course
Graduation Fee 100 100
Returned Check Fee 35 35

*Late registration/late payment

|**will vary depending on the credential

Board Approved:








